
 

 

 Traverse City Downtown 
Development Authority Regular 

Meeting 
Friday, January 17, 2025 

9:00 am 
Commission Chambers, Governmental Center 

400 Boardman Avenue 
Traverse City, Michigan 49684 

  

 
  
  
  
  

 
The City of Traverse City does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the 
admission to, access to, treatment in, or employment in, its programs or activities.  
Interim Assistant City Manager, 400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, Michigan 49684, 
phone 231-922-4440, TDD/TTY 231-922-4412, VRS 231-421-7008, has been 
designated to coordinate compliance with the non-discrimination requirements 
contained in Section 35.107 of the Department of Justice regulations.  Information 
concerning the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the rights provided 
thereunder, are available from the ADA Coordinator. 
 
If you are planning to attend and you have a disability requiring any special assistance 
at the meeting and/or if you have any concerns, please immediately notify the ADA 
Coordinator. 
  
The City of Traverse City and Downtown Development Authority are committed to a 
dialog that is constructive, respectful and civil. We ask that all individuals interacting 
verbally or in writing with board members honor these values.   
  

Downtown Development Authority:     
c/o Harry Burkholder, Executive Director 
(231) 922-2050 
Web: www.dda.downtowntc.com  
303 East State Street, Suite C 
Traverse City, MI  49684 

  
   
  

Page 1 of 84



 
Follow us on Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram - CityofTC - www.traversecitymi.gov 

 

 
Welcome to the Traverse City Downtown Development Authority 

meeting 
 

Agenda 
  

Page  
1. CALL TO ORDER    
2. 

 
ROLL CALL  

  
3. 

 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  
4. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT  

  
5. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping 
non-controversial items together to be dealt with by one DDA Board motion 
without discussion. Any member of the DDA Board, staff or the public may 
ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and 
placed elsewhere on the agenda for individual consideration by the DDA 
Board; and such requests will be automatically respected.  If an item is not 
removed from the consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses on the 
agenda is approved by a single DDA Board action adopting the consent 
calendar. 

 

 
 A. Consideration of approving the minutes from the December 20, 2024 

DDA Regular Board Meeting (approval recommended).   
December 20, 2024 DDA Board Meeting Minutes - PDF 

4 - 7 

 
 B. Consideration of approving the December 2024 Financial Reports 

and Disbursements for DDA General, Old Town TIF, TI-97 and the 
Arts Commission (approval recommended).   
DDA General, Old Town TIF, TIF-97 Financial Report and 
Dashboard - PDF 
Arts Commission December 2024 Financial Report - PDF 

8 - 
16 

  
6. 

 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR  

  
7. 

 
OLD BUSINESS  

 
 A. Capital Project Priorities Update   

Capital Project Priorities Update Memo (Burkholder) - PDF 
17 - 

20 
  
8. 

 
NEW BUSINESS  

 

Page 2 of 84



 
Follow us on Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram - CityofTC - www.traversecitymi.gov 

 

 A. DDA 2024 Annual Audit Report (approval recommended)   
DDA 2024 Audit Memo (Burkholder) - PDF 
DDA 2024 Audit Cover Letter - PDF 
DDA 2024 Annual Audit Report - PDF 

21 - 
68 

 
 B. Annual Treasury Report   

2024 Treasury Report Memo (Burkholder) - PDF 
2024 Old Town TIF Treasury Report - PDF 
2024 TIF-97 Treasury Report - PDF 

69 - 
73 

 
 C. Governance Committee Recommendation (approval recommended)   

Governance Committee Memo - PDF 
DDA Governance Committee Roles and Responsibilities - PDF 
DDA Board Roles Responsibilities - PDF 

74 - 
80 

  
9. 

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT  

 
 A. Executive Director Report   

Executive Director Report (Burkholder) - PDF 
81 

  
10. 

 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS  

 
 A. Arts Commission Report  

Art Commission Report (McMillen) - PDF 
82 

  
11. 

 
STAFF REPORTS  

 
 A. Director of Events and Engagement Report   

Director of Events and Engagement Report (Klebba) - PDF 
83 - 

84 
  
12. 

 
RECEIVE AND FILE  

  
13. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT  

  
14. 

 
ADJOURNMENT  

 

Page 3 of 84



 

 
Minutes of the 

Downtown Development Authority for the City of Traverse City 
Regular Meeting 

December 20, 2024 
 
          A regular meeting of the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Traverse City was 
called to order at the Commission Chambers, Governmental Center, 400 Boardman Avenue, 
Traverse City, Michigan, at 9:00 a.m. 
  
          The following Board Members were in attendance: Board Member Peter Kirkwood, Board 
Vice Chair Scott Hardy, Board Member Jeff Joubran, Board Member Todd McMillen, Board 
Member Ed Slosky, Board Member Hillary Ascroft, Mayor Amy Shamroe, Board Member Shelley 
Spencer, Board Member Gary Howe, and Board Member Mike Powers  
  
          The following Board Members were absent:   None 
  
          Chairperson Hardy presided at the meeting. 
  
 
(a) CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Hardy at 9:00am.  
 
(b) ROLL CALL 
 
(c) REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 (1) That the DDA Board approve the Agenda as presented: 

 
Moved by Jeff Joubran, Seconded by Hillary Ascroft 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote  

 
(d) PUBLIC COMMENT 

  
The following addressed the board: 

Page 1 of 4

Page 4 of 84



 
Fred Bimber 

 
(e) CONSENT CALENDAR 

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping 
non-controversial items together to be dealt with by one DDA Board motion without 
discussion. Any member of the DDA Board, staff or the public may ask that any item on 
the consent calendar be removed therefrom and placed elsewhere on the agenda for 
individual consideration by the DDA Board; and such requests will be automatically 
respected.  If an item is not removed from the consent calendar, the action noted in 
parentheses on the agenda is approved by a single DDA Board action adopting the 
consent calendar.  

 (1) Consideration of approving the minutes from the November 9, 2024 DDA Ad Hoc 
Committee Meeting (approval recommended)    

 (2) Consideration of approving the minutes from the November 15, 2024 DDA Regular 
Board Meeting (approval recommended)    

 (3) Consideration of approving the minutes from the December 13, 2024 DDA Ad Hoc 
Committee meeting (approval recommended)    

 (4) Consideration of approving the November Financial Reports and Disbursements for 
DDA General, Old Town TIF, TIF-97 and the Arts Commission (approval 
recommended)  
That the DDA board approve the Consent Calendar as presented. 
 
Moved by Amy Shamroe, Seconded by Jeff Joubran 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote  

 
(f) ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
(g) OLD BUSINESS  
 (1) TIF-97 Budget Priorities  

 
The following addressed the board: 
Harry Burkholder  

 
(h) NEW BUSINESS  
 (1) Rotary Square Presentation  

 
The following addressed the board: 
Harry Burkholder 
Jason Ball 
Todd Meyer 

Page 2 of 4

Page 5 of 84



 
Amy Shamroe 
Scott Hardy 
  
*Jeff Joubran & Todd McMillen left board meeting  

 
(i) EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT  
 (1) Executive Director Report  

 
The following addressed the board: 
Harry Burkholder  

 
(j) BOARD MEMBER REPORTS  
 (1) Arts Commission Report 

 
The following addressed the board: 
Harry Burkholder 
Todd McMillen 
  
* Pete Kirkwood left meeting  

 
(k) STAFF REPORTS  
 (1) Director of Events and Engagement Report  

 
The following addressed the board: 
Harry Burkholder 
Ed Slosky 
Amy Shamroe 
Gary Howe 
  
   

 
(l) RECEIVE AND FILE  
 (1) Received Items  

 
The following addressed the board: 
Ed Slosky 
Mike Powers 
Hillary Ascroft 
Scott Hardy 
   

 
(m) PUBLIC COMMENT 

n/a  
 
(n) ADJOURNMENT 

Page 3 of 4

Page 6 of 84



 
 
The meeting was adjourned by Chair Hardy at 10:30am. 

 

Harry Burkholder, Executive Director 
 

Page 4 of 4

Page 7 of 84



Traverse City DDA - General
Trial Balance

As of December 31, 2024

Accrual Basis  Sunday, January 12, 2025 05:25 PM GMT-05:00   1/3

DEBIT CREDIT

1000 Fifth Third Checking - 3112 623,541.66

1010 Fifth Third Savings - 6740 212,715.70

1020 Petty Cash 0.00

1072 Bill.com Money Out Clearing 0.00

1200 Accounts Receivable 2,240.64

1101 Due From APS (City of TC) 0.00

1102 Due From Arts Council 0.00

1103 Due From DTCA 0.00

1104 Due From Other Funds 0.00

1220 Grants Receivable 50.00

1230 Other Receivable 0.00

1300 Pre-Paid Expense 1,641.00

1480 Payroll Advance 0.00

1499 Undeposited Funds 0.00

2000 Accounts Payable 5,425.62

2153 Credit Card 2,048.74

2050 Other Accrued Liabilities 150.00

2100 Due to Other Funds 0.00

2110 Due to Oldtown TIF 22,530.96

2120 Due to TIF 97 61,238.03

2200 Payroll Liabilities 0.00

2201 Payroll Liabilities:Direct Deposit Liabilities 0.00

2202 Payroll Liabilities:Accrued Payroll Liabilities 11,081.49

2203 Payroll Liabilities:Accrued Salaries 37,361.89

2205 Payroll Liabilities:457b Payable 1,709.32

2210 Payroll Liabilities:Federal Income Tax Payable 0.00

2215 Payroll Liabilities:Health, Dental, Vision Insurance Payable 55,767.67

2220 Payroll Liabilities:Life & Disability Insurance Payable 3,297.98

2225 Payroll Liabilities:Medicare Tax Payable 0.00

2230 Payroll Liabilities:Social Security Tax Payable 0.00

2235 Payroll Liabilities:State Income Tax Payable 0.00

2240 Payroll Liabilities:State Unemployment Tax Payable 0.00

2245 Payroll Liabilities:Wage Garnishment Payable 0.00

2300 Deposits Payable 0.00

2301 Deposits Payable:Double Up Food Bucks 9,664.39

2303 Deposits Payable:NCF Reimbursements 469.00

2304 Deposits Payable:Prescriptions for Health 0.00

2305 Deposits Payable:Project Fresh 764.00

2306 Deposits Payable:Senior Project Fresh 1,429.00

2307 Deposits Payable:SNAP Food Assistance Payable 0.00

2403 GRANTS:EGLE - Cornwell Development 0.00

2407 GRANTS:MEDC Civic Square 100,000.00

2409 GRANTS:Rotary Charities 0.00

2600 Deferred Income 22,510.83

Bryan Crough Memorial Fund 0.00

Page 8 of 84



Traverse City DDA - General
Trial Balance

As of December 31, 2024

Accrual Basis  Sunday, January 12, 2025 05:25 PM GMT-05:00   2/3

DEBIT CREDIT

Bumpout Project Funds Collected 0.00

Buy Local Give Local Campaign 0.00

Suspense 0.00

3000 Opening Bal Equity 107,606.27

3900 Retained Earnings 468,428.85

4101 TAXES:Property Taxes 123,558.81

4212 GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS:EGLE Grant-State Street West-End Mixed Use 1,485.00

4302 REIMBURSEMENTS:Administrative Services 378,114.00

4303 REIMBURSEMENTS:Parking Services 181,257.90

4306 REIMBURSEMENTS:Farmer's Market Booth Rental Income 48,940.68

4501 INTEREST INCOME:Interest & Dividends 4,066.45

5101 SALARIES:Salaries & Wages 262,615.45

5102 SALARIES:Hourly Wage Expense 128,382.72

5201 FRINGE BENEFITS:Health Insurance 63,137.51

5202 FRINGE BENEFITS:Disability Insurance Benefits 3,137.04

5203 FRINGE BENEFITS:Life Insurance Expense 832.08

5204 FRINGE BENEFITS:457 Company Matching 28,648.74

5208 FRINGE BENEFITS:Social Security Tax Expense 25,274.39

5209 FRINGE BENEFITS:Medicare Tax Expense 5,910.88

5210 FRINGE BENEFITS:SUTA Tax Expense 836.34

5400 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 165.00

5401 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES:Contract Services 7,500.00

5402 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES:Legal 27,069.00

5403 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES:Professional/Contractual 117,374.32

5409 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES:Grant exp EGLE cornwell bldg 1,250.00

5418 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES:SNAP Food Assistance Expense 10,284.00

5419 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES:EGLE Grant-State Street West-End Mixed Use 385.00

5420 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES:Farmers Market Administrative Expense 23,290.39

5421 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES:Marketing 43,240.00

5501 TRAVEL AND CONFERENCES:Lodging, meals 545.39

5502 TRAVEL AND CONFERENCES:Transportation 390.76

5503 TRAVEL AND CONFERENCES:Training 275.00

5601 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE:Repairs & Maintenance 269.78

OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES 80.00

5301 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES:Office Supplies 9,055.98

5302 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES:Utilities 2,471.63

5303 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES:Operation Supplies 389.12

5305 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES:Dues, Subscriptions and Memberships 8,705.81

5306 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES:Printing & Publishing 691.31

5307 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES:Communications 1,289.60

5308 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES:Miscellaneous Expense 11,231.86

5311 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES:Escheatment Liability 0.00

5404 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES:Insurance, Bonds & Taxes 864.00

TOTAL $1,637,344.49 $1,637,344.49

Page 9 of 84



Traverse City DDA - General
Trial Balance

As of December 31, 2024

Accrual Basis  Sunday, January 12, 2025 05:25 PM GMT-05:00   3/3

Page 10 of 84



Traverse City DDA - Old Town TIF
Trial Balance

As of December 31, 2024

Accrual Basis  Sunday, January 12, 2025 02:04 PM GMT-05:00   1/1

DEBIT CREDIT

1001 Fifth Third Checking - 0650 1,485,903.55

1072 Bill.com Money Out Clearing 0.00

1200 Accounts Receivable 22,530.96

1103 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:Due From Other Funds 0.00

1104 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:Due From DDA 0.00

1300 Pre-Paid Expense 0.00

2000 Accounts Payable 0.00

2100 Due to Other Funds 0.00

3900 Retained Earnings 799,554.29

4101 Property Taxes 814,165.12

Sales 0.00

5302 OFFICE SUPPLIES & UTILITIES:Utilities 722.49

5308 OFFICE SUPPLIES & UTILITIES:Miscellaneous Expense 146.10

5400 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 84,964.31

5500 Contributions to District Construction Projects 3,500.00

5900 Repairs and Maintenance 23,401.77

4501 INTEREST INCOME:Interest & Divident Income 449.77

TOTAL $1,617,669.18 $1,617,669.18

Page 11 of 84



Traverse City DDA - TIF 97
Trial Balance

As of December 31, 2024

Accrual Basis  Sunday, January 12, 2025 02:51 PM GMT-05:00   1/1

DEBIT CREDIT

1001 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:Fifth Third Checking - 8026 9,096,488.19

1072 Bill.com Money Out Clearing 0.00

1200 Accounts Receivable 61,238.03

1102 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:Due from other governments 0.00

1103 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:Due From Other Funds 0.00

1104 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:Due From DDA 0.00

1210 Deposits-Security Deposit 4,500.00

1300 Pre-Paid Expense 0.00

1499 Undeposited Funds 0.00

2000 Accounts Payable 24,902.59

2300 Due to City - Capital Projects 0.00

2100 Due to Other Funds 0.00

2200 Deferred Revenue 0.00

3000 Opening Bal Equity 21,200.00

3900 Retained Earnings 6,307,524.02

4101 TAXES:Property Taxes 3,675,701.91

4501 INTEREST INCOME:Interest & Dividends 718.70

5301 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES:Office Supplies 210.75

5302 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES:Utilities 1,396.19

5306 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES:Printing & Publishing 1,530.43

5308 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES:Miscellaneous Expense 1,123.26

5309 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES:Bank Charges 360.82

5400 Professional Services 338,246.14

5500 Contributions to District Construction Projects 363,334.79

5600 Contributions to Other Governments-Debt Service 36,859.98

5801 RENT OR LEASE EXPENSE:Rent Expense 27,000.00

5901 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES:Repairs and Maintenance 55,358.64

TOTAL $10,008,847.22 $10,008,847.22

Page 12 of 84



YTD as of Prior Year as of
Financial Position 12/31/2024 6/30/2024 * Change

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 836,257$                  811,754$               24,504$                 
Other Assets 3,932                         283,104                 (279,172)               
Total Assets 840,189$                  1,094,858$           (254,669)$             

Current Liabilities 7,474$                       337,420$               (329,946)$             
Total Other Liabilities  304,850                     181,402                 123,447                 
Total Liabilities 312,324                     518,823                 (206,498)               

Fund Balance 527,865                     576,035                 (48,170)                  

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 840,189$                 1,094,858$          (254,669)$            

* Prior year balances are pre-audit and subject to change

Revenue YTD Annual Budget % of Budget

Property Taxes 123,559$                  130,000$               95.0%
Grants & Contributions 1,485                         1,875,000              0.1%
Reimbursements 559,372                     743,728                 75.2%
Rental Income 48,941                       51,000                   96.0%
Interest 4,066                         2,000                     203.3%

Total Revenue 737,423$                 2,801,728$          26%

 
Expenses YTD Annual Budget % of Budget

Employee Expenses: Wages, Taxes & Benefits 518,775$                  541,113$               96%
Office Supplies & Utilities 34,779                       80,000                   43%
Maintenance & Repair 270                            0                             0%
Travel, Meals & Training 1,211                         30,000                   4%
Professional Services 230,558                     377,800                 61%
Rental Expense -                             -                         0%
Total Expenses 785,593$                 1,028,913$          76%

No CPA has audited, reviewed, compiled or expressed any assurances on these financial statements

12/31/2024

Board Financial Report - Dashboard
TC Downtown Development Authority (DDA)

$124,158 $130,000 

Prop. Tax YTD Compared to Budget

Actual Budget

66.04%

4.43%

0.03%

0.15%

29.35%

% of Total Expenses

Employee Expenses: Wages, Taxes &
Benefits

Utitiies & Supplies

Maintenance & Repair

Travel, Meals & Training

Professional Services

Page 13 of 84



YTD as of Prior Year as of
Financial Position 12/31/2024 6/30/2024 * Change

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,485,904$               1,192,161$           293,743$              
Other Assets 22,531                      35,035                   (12,504)                 
Total Assets 1,508,435$               1,227,196$           281,238$              

Current Liabilities -$                          427,642$              (427,642)$             
Total Other Liabilities -                             -                         -                         
Total Liabilities -                             427,642                 (427,642)               

Fund Balance 1,508,435                 799,554                 708,880                

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 1,508,435$              1,227,196$          281,238$             

* Prior year balances are pre-audit and subject to change

Revenue YTD Annual Budget % of Budget

Property Taxes 814,165$                  823,427$              98.9%
Interest 450                            100                        449.8%

Total Revenue 814,615$                 823,527$             99%

 
Expenses YTD Annual Budget % of Budget

Utilities 722$                          -$                       N/A
Professional Services 84,964                      303,383                 28%
Other: Printing/Publishing, Supplies 146                            100                        146%
Repairs & Maintenance 23,401                      60,000                   39%
Capital Projects (3,500)                       378,120                 -1%

Total Expenses 105,734$                 741,603$             14%

Capital Project Expenses: YTD Annual Budget % of Budget

Mobility Implementation - Downtown Cameras -                             28,120                   0%
Mobility Implementation - Infrastructure Repair -                             30,000                   0%
Streetscapes/Snow Melt Projects -                             100,000                 0%
Hannah Park Improvements -                             80,000                   0%
Rivers Edge Riverwalk Decking Replacement -                             130,000                 0%
Miscellaneous (3,500)                       10,000                   -35%

Total Project Expenses (3,500)$                    378,120$             -1%

No CPA has audited, reviewed, compiled or expressed any assurances on these financial statements

12/31/2024

Board Financial Report - Dashboard
Old Town Tax Increment Financing

 (4,000)  (3,500)  (3,000)  (2,500)  (2,000)  (1,500)  (1,000)  (500)  -

 Mobility Implementation - Downtown Cameras

 Mobility Implementation - Infrastructure Repair

 Streetscapes/Snow Melt Projects

 Hannah Park Improvements

 Rivers Edge Riverwalk Decking Replacement

 Miscellaneous

 Mobility
Implementation -

Downtown Cameras

 Mobility
Implementation -

Infrastructure
Repair

 Streetscapes/Snow
Melt Projects

 Hannah Park
Improvements

 Rivers Edge
Riverwalk Decking

Replacement
 Miscellaneous

Misc. - - - - - -
Contractor - - - - - (3,500)
Supplies - - - - - -

Capital Project by Expense Type

Misc. Contractor Supplies

$814,166 $841,481 

Prop. Tax YTD Compared to Budget

Actual Budget

Page 14 of 84



YTD as of Prior Year as of
Financial Position 12/31/2024 6/30/2024 * Change

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,096,488$               6,109,666$           2,986,822$           
Other Assets 65,738                       274,515                 (208,777)               
Total Assets 9,162,226$               6,384,181$           2,778,045$           

Current Liabilities 24,903$                    97,857$                 (72,954)$               
Total Other Liabilities -                             -                         -                         
Total Liabilities 24,903                       97,857                   (72,954)                  

Fund Balance 9,137,324                 6,286,324             2,851,000             

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 9,162,226$              6,384,181$          2,778,045$          

* Prior year balances are pre-audit and subject to change

Revenue YTD Annual Budget % of Budget

Property Taxes 3,675,702$               4,165,820$           88.2%
Grant Revenue -                             -                         N/A
Reimbursements -                             -                         N/A
Interest 719                            4,500                     16.0%

Total Revenue 3,676,421$              4,170,320$          88%

 
Expenses YTD Annual Budget % of Budget

Office Supplies & Utilities 4,621$                       20,000$                 23%
Professional Services 338,246                    1,427,215             24%
Rent Expense 27,000                       50,000                   0%
Repair & Maintenance 55,359                       250,000                 22%
Capital Projects 363,335                    3,034,367             12%
Debt Service 36,860                       913,720                 4%
Taxes & Transfers -                             -                         0%

Total Expenses 825,421$                 5,695,302$          14%

Capital Project Expenses: YTD Annual Budget % of Budget

Lower Boardman/Ottaway Riverwalk -                             1,000,000             0%
State/Boardman/Pine Two-Way Conversion 51,648                       500,000                 10%
Streetscapes/Snow Melt Projects -                             400,000                 0%
Bayfront Tart Trail Engineering, Design, Construction -                             200,000                 0%
309 West Front Street Staircase (10,200)                     100,000                 -10%
Rotary Square -                             100,000                 0%
Mobility Implementation - Infrastructure Repair -                             100,000                 0%
Mobility Implementation - Downtown Cameras -                             112,480                 0%
Mobility Implementation - BRA Interlocal Agreement 321,887                    321,887                 100%
Mobility Implementation - Stormwater Improvements -                             100,000                 0%
Miscellaneous -                             100,000                 0%

Total Project Expenses 363,335$                 3,034,367$          12%

No CPA has audited, reviewed, compiled or expressed any assurances on these financial statements

Tax Increment Financing Bond 97 (TIF97)
Board Financial Report - Dashboard

12/31/2024

 (50,000)  -  50,000  100,000  150,000  200,000  250,000  300,000  350,000  400,000  450,000  500,000

 Lower Boardman/Ottaway Riverwalk

 State/Boardman/Pine Two-Way Conversion

 Streetscapes/Snow Melt Projects

 Bayfront Tart Trail Engineering, Design, Construction

 309 West Front Street Staircase

 Rotary Square

 Mobility Implementation - Infrastructure Repair

 Mobility Implementation - Downtown Cameras

 Mobility Implementation - BRA Interlocal Agreement

 Mobility Implementation - Stormwater Improvements

 Miscellaneous

 Lower
Boardman/Ott

away
Riverwalk

State/Boardm
an/Pine Two-

Way
Conversion

Streetscapes/S
now Melt
Projects

 Bayfront Tart
Trail

Engineering,
Design,

Construction

 309 West
Front Street

Staircase
 Rotary Square

 Mobility
Implementatio

n -
Infrastructure

Repair

 Mobility
Implementatio
n - Downtown

Cameras

 Mobility
Implementatio

n - BRA
Interlocal

Agreement

 Mobility
Implementatio
n - Stormwater
Improvements

 Miscellaneous

Misc. - - - - - - - - 321,887 - -
Contractor - 51,648 - - (10,200) - - -
Supplies - - - - - - - -

Capital Project by Expense Type

Misc. Contractor Supplies

$3,675,702 $4,165,820 

Prop. Tax YTD Compared to Budget

Actual Budget

Page 15 of 84



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR TRAVERSE CITY 1/1Page: 01/07/2025 10:41 AM
User: nvanness
DB: Traverse City

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 
12/31/24

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2024

2024-25
AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 107 - PUBLIC ARTS COMMISSION FUND
Revenues
Dept 000 - NON-DEPARTMENTAL

0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 INTEREST & DIVIDEND EARNINGS107-000-664.000
0.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 CONTRIBUTIONS-PUBLIC SOURCES107-000-675.000
0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 PRIOR YEARS' SURPLUS107-000-692.000
0.00 30,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30,000.00 TRANSFERS IN107-000-699.000

0.00 66,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 66,000.00 Total Dept 000 - NON-DEPARTMENTAL

0.00 66,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 66,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 000 - NON-DEPARTMENTAL

16.48 53,453.33 3,337.93 680.67 7,208.74 64,000.00 PROFESSIONAL AND CONTRACTUAL 107-000-801.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE107-000-930.000

15.98 55,453.33 3,337.93 680.67 7,208.74 66,000.00 Total Dept 000 - NON-DEPARTMENTAL

15.98 55,453.33 3,337.93 680.67 7,208.74 66,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 10,546.67 (3,337.93)(680.67)(7,208.74)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

15.98 55,453.33 3,337.93 680.67 7,208.74 66,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 66,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 66,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 107 - PUBLIC ARTS COMMISSION FUND:

Page 16 of 84



Downtown Development Authority 
303 E. State Street 

Traverse City, MI 49684 
harry@downtowntc.com 

      231-922-2050 
 
                   MEMORANDUM 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
To:    Downtown Development Authority Board   
 
From:  Harry Burkholder, Executive Director 
 
Date:   January 13, 2025 
 
Re:    TIF-97 Budget Priorities   
 
 
As you recall, at our December 27th meeting, the DDA Board selected the following 
capital improvement project priorities: 
 

1. Rotary Square  
2. East Front Street  
3. Farmers Market Pavilion  
4. Boardman/Ottaway Riverwalk - Phase 1-A (J-Smith Walkway, Pedestrian Bridge,  

                                                   Naturalized Abutments/Stormwater Infrastructure) 
 

This memo is intended to provide an update on the standing/status of each capital 
improvement project priority and provide the framework for next steps, critical decisions 
and budget allocation. I am working with staff to create a more visual “scorecard” for 
each project moving forward, but an update on each of these priorities will be provided 
in each DDA Board meeting moving forward. 
 
Rotary Square  
The first on-line survey for this project was released on January 13th and we are working 
with Progressive to plan future public engagement activities.  
 
East Front Street  
The DDA worked with Progressive Companies to develop a streetscaping plan for East 
Front Street in 2021. At the time, the scope of the project included East Front Street, 
from Grandview and Park Street, as well as Park Street (from Front Street to Grandview 
Parkway). The total estimated cost for the project at that time was roughly $5-million, 
which also included underground utilities. Last month, I asked Progressive if they could 
provide an updated cost estimate for East Front Street.  
 

Page 17 of 84



Progressive staff was able to provide a preliminary cost estimate (based upon 60% 
plans that were previously developed) range of $7 to $7.7-million dollars. Keep in mind, 
this cost is just an estimate and is based on a number of design variables which could 
reduce the overall cost.   
 
As was previously discussed, this project was intended to have two complimentary 
components – (1) the roadway and streetscape component which is now estimated to 
cost between $4-million to $4.3-million which would be funded by the DDA (with TIF) 
and; (2) Water and Sanitary Updates, which is estimated to cost between $3-million to 
$3.3-million and would be funded with city funds. These costs do not include costs 
related to Design Engineering and Construction Engineering.  
 
To reiterate, theses preliminary costs are just estimates and provide a starting point for 
additional investigation and discussion with both Progressive and the city. The scope of 
this project could also change if the Park Street component was eliminated, snowmelt 
elements were eliminated and an additional gateway design were requested to 
compliment the new intersection at Front Street and Grandview Parkway.  
 
A possible next step would be to engage Progressive in additional design and 
engineering services to get a more definitive determination of actual costs. 
Other factors to consider include the determination and buy-in on the final design of the 
street features (e.g., bike-lane), the timing of implementation, and collaboration with the 
city on the underground utility components.  
 
I am scheduled to meet with city engineering to discuss this project (and each of our 
capital improvement project priorities) later this week.  
 
We would need to amend the current DDA budget or include funding in the 2025/2026 
budget to advance this effort. 
 
Farmers Market Pavillion  
In 2017, the DDA engaged with Beckett and Reader to design a permanent pavilion for 
the Farmers Market, in Lot B. As noted in previous meetings, the city is investigating 
repaving Lot B (with additional stormwater infrastructure), which would provide an 
opportunity to incorporate the pavilion. The original design of the pavilion needs to be 
revised, as Lot B has been reconfigured (and will likely see additional modifications has 
with the repaving and stormwater elements of the project). I asked Beckett and Reader 
if they could provide a cost estimate for redesigning the pavilion based on the current 
and proposed configuration changes with Lot B.     
 
Beckett and Reader staff was able to provide a preliminary cost of roughly $133,000 to 
redesign the pavilion and develop constriction drawings. As noted above, I am 
scheduled to meet with city engineering to discuss this project later this week to outline 
the needs for this project.  
 

Page 18 of 84



Similar to East Front Street, to move forward with anything of substance, we would 
need to amend the current DDA budget or include funding in the 2025/2026 budget.  
   
Boardman/Ottaway Riverwalk 
Following the completion of the conceptual design for entire 1.6-mile riverwalk in 2022, 
the DDA issued an RFP for schematic design, design development and construction 
drawings for riverfront improvements along the 100 and 200 block alleys of Front Street. 
We received only one proposal from INFORM Studio (the firm who created the 
conceptual design).  
 
Without action to move the project forward and additional discussion, the scope became 
more refined (Phase 1-A). Over the summer, I asked representatives from INFORM if 
they could provide a cost estimate for schematic design, design development and 
construction drawings for Phase 1-A. INFORM staff was able to provide a preliminary 
cost estimate of roughly $1.3 million, as well as cost estimates for bidding and award 
and construction administration. Given the time lapse between the summer estimate 
and today, I am meeting with representatives from INFORM later this week to review 
the services needed and secure revised cost estimates.  
 
We have budgeted engineering services for this project in the 2024/2025 budget.   

 
Additional/On-Going Projects and Initiatives Part of the Priority Discussion   
 
State Street Two-Way  
In addition to the preliminary costs staff has investigated for additional modifications to 
State Street in the pilot project is extended, I have been working with City Engineering 
to determine costs associated with mid-block crosswalks along state street. Preliminary 
costs vary, depending on location between $250,000 to $400,000. I will continue to work 
with city engineering to refine these cost estimates. If installed, the mid-block 
crosswalks would help support our long-term vision for the street (to slow traffic and 
make the street more pedestrian friendly), even if State Street were reverted to one-way 
traffic.   

 
Ambassador Program  
Last month, we connected with Block by Block, a well-respected national company that 
provides ambassador services in downtowns throughout the United States, about 
similar services for Traverse City. We were curious about the costs associated with a 
national company/program versus if we were able to contract locally and/or keep the 
ambassador position in-house. Block by Block provided a draft budget, with seasonality 
services 5-days per week at roughly $650,000 annually. I think these costs demonstrate 
the value of keeping this position within the DDA.  

 
 
 
  
 

Page 19 of 84



  

Page 20 of 84



 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
303 E. State Street 

Traverse City, MI 49684 
harry@downtowntc.com 

      231-922-2050 

           Memorandum 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
To:    DDA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Harry Burkholder, DDA Executive Director  
   
Date:   January 13, 2025  
 
Subject:  2023/2024 DDA Audit   
 
 
The audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, as well as the cover letter from 
Vredeveld Haefner LLC, the firm who conducts the audit on behalf of the City and DDA, 
is attached for your review. The Auditor issued an unqualified (i.e., “clean”) opinion on 
the financial statements:   
 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above (each major fund of the 
DDA) present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities for each major fund of the Authority, as of June 30, 2024, 
and the respective changes in the financial position for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  

 
Financial Highlights of the Audit (as noted on page 3): 

• The assets of the Authority exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year by $9,630,795 (net position).  

• The Authority’s total net position increased by $494,157 
• As od the close of the current fiscal year, the Authority’s governmental funds 

reported combined ending fund balances of $7,661,912, an increase of $529,160 
in comparison with the prior year.  

 
Brain Postma, from the City’s Treasury Department will be at our meeting to answer any 
questions, if needed. 
 
Recommended Motion  
That the DDA Board accept the annual audited financial statements for the Traversde 
City Downtown Development Authority for the year ending June 30, 2024 
 
 
 

Page 21 of 84



D
ec

em
be

r
19

,
2 0 2 4

H
ar

ry
B

ur
kh

ol
de

r,
C

E
O

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y

D
ow

nt
ow

n
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
30

3
E

.
S

ta
te

S
tr

ee
t,

S
ui

te
C

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y,

M
I4

96
84

D
ea

r
H

ar
ry

:

W
e

ap
pr

ec
ia

te
th

e
op

po
rt

un
it

y
to

w
or

k
w

it
h

yo
u.

E
nc

lo
se

d
pl

ea
se

?n
d

th
e

fo
ll

ow
in

g:

0
Tw

el
ve

co
pi

es
of

th
e

au
di

te
d

fi
na

nc
ia

l
st

at
em

en
ts

o fth
e

C
it

y
of T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y
D

ow
nt

ow
n

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

as
of

Ju
ne

20
2

4.
0

Tw
el

ve
co

pi
es

of
ou

r
re

qu
ir

ed
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
le

t
te

r
.

T
he

re
po

rt
s

w
er

e
up

lo
ad

ed
to

th
e

S
ta

te
of

M
ic

hi
ga

n
to

th
ei

r
re

qu
ir

em
en

t
s.

P
le

as
e

ca
ll

if
yo

u
sh

ou
ld

ha
ve

an
y

qu
es

ti
on

s.

S
in

ce
re

ly
V

re
de

ve
ld

ae
f

r L L C

V
re

de
ve

l
d

L
L

C
C

PA
s

an d
C o n s u lt a n ts

10
30

2
A

ve
n

ue
G

ra
nd

R ap id s,

M
I

49
53

4
Fa

x
( 61 6)

82 803
07

D
ou

gl
as

J.
C

PA
44

6-
74

74
M

ic
ha

el
J.

C
PA

64
8-

84
47

S pe ci al iz in g

inse
rv

ic
es

togo
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l
an

d
no

np
ro

fi
t

en
ti

ti
es

D
ou

J. V
re

de
ve

ld
,

C
PA

P

Page 22 of 84



V
re

de
ve

ld
H

ae
fn

er
L

L
C

C
PA

s
an

d
C

on
su

lt
an

ts
D

ou
gl

as
J.

V
re

de
ve

ld
.CP

A
10

30
2

20
"I

A
ve

nu
e

(6
16

)
44

6-
74

74
G

ra
nd

R
ap

id
s,

M
I4

95
34

M
ic

ha
el

J.
V

re
de

ve
ld

,
C

PA
C

PA
S

Fa
x

(6
16

)
82

8-
03

07
(6

16
)

64
8-

84
47

D
ec

em
be

r
17

, 2
02

4

To
th

e
B

oa
rd

of
D

ir
ec

to
rs

C
it

y
of

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y

D
ow

nt
ow

n
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y.
M

ic
hi

ga
n

W
e

ha
ve

au
di

te
d

th
e

fi
na

nc
ia

l
st

at
em

en
ts

of
th

e
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l

ac
tiv

it
ie

s
an

d
ea

ch
m

aj
or

fu
nd

of
th

e
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y
D

ow
nt

ow
n

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

(t
he

D
D

A
)

fo
r

th
e

ye
ar

en
de

d
Ju

ne
30

.2
02

4.
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l

st
an

da
rd

s
re

qu
ir

e
th

at
w

e
pr

ov
id

e
yo

u
w

it
h

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

ab
ou

t
ou

r
re

sp
on

si
bi

li
ti

es
un

de
r

ge
ne

ra
ll

y
ac

ce
pt

ed
au

di
ti

ng
st

an
da

rd
s

an
d

G
ov

er
nm

en
t

A
ud

it
in

g
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

,
as

w
el

l
as

ce
rt

ai
n

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

re
la

te
d

to
th

e
pl

an
ne

d
sc

op
e

an
d

ti
m

in
g

of
ou

r
au

di
t.

W
e

ha
ve

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed
su

ch
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
in

ou
r

le
tt

er
to

yo
u

da
te

d
N

ov
em

be
r

5,
20

24
.

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l
st

an
da

rd
s

al
so

re
qu

ir
e

th
at

w
e

co
m

m
un

ic
at

e
to

yo
u

th
e

fo
ll

ow
in

g
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
re

la
te

d
to

ou
r

au
di

t.

S
ig

ni
?c

an
t

A
ud

it
M

at
te

rs

Q
ua

li
ta

tiv
e

A
sp

ec
ts

of
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g
P

ra
ct

ic
es

M
an

ag
em

en
t

is
re

sp
on

si
bl

e
fo

r
th

e
se

le
ct

io
n

an
d

us
e

of
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
ac

co
un

ti
ng

po
li

ci
es

.
T

he
si

gn
i?

ca
nt

ac
co

un
ti

ng
po

li
ci

es
us

ed
by

th
e

D
D

A
ar

e
de

sc
ri

be
d

in
N

ot
e

1
to

th
e

fi
na

nc
ia

l
st

at
em

en
ts

.
N

o
ne

w
ac

co
un

ti
ng

po
li

ci
es

w
er

e
ad

op
te

d
an

d
th

e
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
of

ex
is

ti
ng

po
li

ci
es

w
as

no
t

ch
an

ge
d

du
ri

ng
20

24
.

W
e

no
te

d
no

tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

en
te

re
d

in
to

by
th

e
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l

un
it

du
ri

ng
th

e
ye

ar
fo

r
w

hi
ch

th
er

e
is

a
la

ck
of

au
th

or
it

at
iv

e
gu

id
an

ce
or

co
ns

en
su

s.
A

ll
si

gn
i?

ca
nt

tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

ha
ve

be
en

re
co

gn
iz

ed
in

th
e

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
in

th
e

pr
op

er
pe

ri
od

.

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g

es
ti

m
at

es
ar

e
an

in
te

gr
al

pa
rt

of
th

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

pr
ep

ar
ed

by
m

an
ag

em
en

t
an

d
ar

e
ba

se
d

on
m

an
ag

em
en

t’
s

kn
ow

le
dg

e
an

d
ex

pe
ri

en
ce

ab
ou

t
pa

st
an

d
cu

rr
en

t
ev

en
ts

an
d

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

ab
ou

t
fu

tu
re

ev
en

ts
.

C
er

ta
in

ac
co

un
ti

ng
es

ti
m

at
es

ar
e

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

se
ns

it
iv

e
be

ca
us

e
of

th
ei

r
si

gn
if

ic
an

ce
to

th
e

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
an

d
be

ca
us

e
of

th
e

po
ss

ib
il

it
y

th
at

fu
tu

re
ev

en
ts

af
fe

ct
in

g
th

em
m

ay
di

ff
er

si
gn

i?
ca

nt
ly

fr
om

th
os

e
ex

pe
ct

ed
.

T
he

m
os

t
se

ns
it

iv
e

es
ti

m
at

es
af

fe
ct

in
g

th
e

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
w

er
e:

M
an

ag
em

en
t’

s
es

ti
m

at
e

of
th

e
co

m
m

it
te

d
ta

x
in

cr
em

en
t

is
ba

se
d

on
va

ri
ou

s
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
pr

oj
ec

ts
w

it
hi

n
th

e
di

st
ri

ct
.

W
e

ev
al

ua
te

d
th

e
ke

y
fa

ct
or

s
an

d
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
us

ed
to

de
ve

lo
p

th
e

es
ti

m
at

es
in

de
te

rm
in

in
g

th
at

th
ey

ar
e

re
as

on
ab

le
in

re
la

ti
on

to
th

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

ta
ke

n
as

a
w

ho
le

.

D
if

?c
ul

ti
es

E
nc

ou
nt

er
ed

in
P

er
fo

rm
in

g
th

e
A

ud
it

W
e

en
co

un
te

re
d

no
si

gn
if

ic
an

t
di

f?
cu

lt
ie

s
in

de
al

in
g

w
it

h
m

an
ag

em
en

t
in

pe
rf

or
m

in
g

an
d

co
m

pl
et

in
g

ou
r

au
di

t.

C
or

re
ct

ed
an

d
U

nc
or

re
ct

ed
M

is
st

at
em

en
ts

ot
he

r
th

an
th

os
e

th
at

ar
e

tr
iv

ia
l.a

nd
co

m
m

un
ic

at
e

th
em

to
th

e
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
le

ve
l

of
m

an
ag

em
en

t.
W

e
di

d
no

t
de

te
ct

an
y

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
as

a
re

su
lt

of
au

di
t

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
th

e
re

qu
ir

ed
co

rr
ec

ti
on

by
m

an
ag

em
en

t
th

at
w

er
e

m
at

er
ia

l,
ei

th
er

in
di

vi
du

al
ly

or
in

th
e

ag
gr

eg
at

e,
to

ea
ch

op
in

io
n

un
it

’s
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

ta
ke

n
as

a
w

ho
le

.
D

is
ag

re
em

en
ts

w
it

h
M

an
ag

em
en

t
Fo

r
pu

rp
os

es
of

th
is

le
tt

er
.p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l

st
an

da
rd

s
de

?n
e

a
di

sa
gr

ee
m

en
t

w
it

h
m

an
ag

em
en

t
as

a
?n

an
ci

al
ac

co
un

ti
ng

.
re

po
rt

in
g.

or
au

di
ti

ng
m

at
te

r.
w

he
th

er
or

no
t

re
so

lv
ed

to
ou

r
sa

ti
sf

ac
ti

on
,

th
at

co
ul

d
be

si
gn

i?
ca

nt
to

th
e

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
or

th
e

au
di

to
r’

s
re

po
rt

.
W

e
ar

e
pl

ea
se

d
to

re
po

rt
th

at
no

su
ch

di
sa

gr
ee

m
en

ts
ar

os
e

du
ri

ng
th

e
co

ur
se

of
ou

r
au

di
t.

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

W
e

ha
ve

re
qu

es
te

d
ce

rt
ai

n
re

pr
es

en
ta

ti
on

s
fr

om
m

an
ag

em
en

t
th

at
ar

e
in

cl
ud

ed
in

th
e

m
an

ag
em

en
t

re
pr

es
en

ta
ti

on
le

tt
er

da
te

d
D

ec
em

be
r

17
,

20
24

.

S pe ci al
i

zi ng

inse
rv

ic
es

togo
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l
an

d
no

np
ro

fi
t

en
ti

ti
es

Page 23 of 84



M
an

ag
em

en
t

C
on

su
lt

at
io

ns
w

it
h

O
th

er
In

de
pe

nd
en

t
A

cc
ou

nt
an

ts

In
so

m
e

ca
se

s,
m

an
ag

em
en

t
m

ay
de

ci
de

to
co

ns
ul

t
w

it
h

ot
he

r
ac

co
un

ta
nt

s
ab

o
ut

au di ti n gan
d

ac
co

un
ti

ng
m

at
te

rs
si

m
il

ar
to

ob
ta

in
in

g
a

“s
ec

on
d

op
in

io
n"

on
ce

rt
ai

n
si

tu
at

io
ns

.
It

a
co

ns
ul

ta
ti

on
in vo lv es

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n

ofan ac
co

un
ti

ng
pr

in
ci

pl
e

to
th

e
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l

un
it

’s
fi

na
nc

ia
l

st
at

em
en

ts
or

a
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n

o f
t ty

pe
of au

di
to

r’
s

op
in

io
n

th
at

m
ay

be
ex

pr
es

se
d

on
th

os
e

st
at

em
en

ts
.o

ur
pr

of
es

si
on

al
st

an
da

rd
s

re
qu

ir
e

t h e

co ns ul
t

in gac
co

un
ta

nt
to ch

ec
k

w
it

h
us

to
de

te
rm

in
e

th
at

th
e

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
ha

s
al

l
th

e
re

le
va

nt
fa

ct
s.

To
ou

r t
he

re
w

er
e

no su
ch

co
ns

ul
ta

ti
on

s
w

it
h

ot
he

r
ac

co
un

ta
nt

s.

O
th

er
A

ud
it

F
in

di
ng

s
or

Is
su

es

W
e

ge
ne

ra
ll

y
di

sc
us

s
a

va
ri

et
y

of
m

at
te

rs
.

in
cl

ud
in

g
th

e
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
of

a c c o u nt in g

pr
in

ci
pl

es
an

d
au

di
ti

ng
st

an
da

rd
s,

w
it

h
m

an
ag

em
en

t
ea

ch
ye

ar
pr

io
r

to
re

te
nt

io
n

as
th

e
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l

un it
'

sau
di

to
rs

.
H

ow
ev

er
,

th
es

e
di

sc
us

si
on

s
oc

cu
rr

ed
in

th
e

no
rm

al
co

ur
se

of
ou

r
pr

of
es

si
on

al
re

la
ti

on
sh

ip
an

d
re

s
po ns esw

er
e

no
t

a co
nd

it
io

n
to

ou
r

re
te

nt
io

n.

O
th

er
M

at
te

rs

W
e

ap
pl

ie
d

ce
rt

ai
n

li
m

it
ed

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
to

th
e

re
qu

ir
ed

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
( R S I) .as it

em
iz

ed
inth

e
ta

bl
e

of
co

nt
en

ts
,

th
at

su
pp

le
m

en
ts

th
e

ba
si

c
fi

na
nc

ia
l

st
at

em
en

ts
.

O
ur

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
co

n
si

st
ed

of in
qu

ir
ie

s
of m

an
ag

em
en

t
re

ga
rd

in
g

th
e

m
et

ho
ds

of
pr

ep
ar

in
g

th
e

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

an
d

co
m

pa
ri

ng
th

e
fo

r
co

ns
is

te
nc

y
w

th
m

an
ag

em
en

t's
re

sp
on

se
s

to
ou

r
in

qu
ir

ie
s.

th
e

ba
si

c
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

,
a n d

ot
h

erkn
ow

le
dg

ew
e

ob
ta

in
ed

du
ri

ng
ou

r
au

di
t

of
th

e
ba

si
c

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
.

W
e

di
d

no
t

au
di

t
th

e
R

S
I

do no
t

ex
pr

es
s

an op
in

io
n

or
pr

ov
id

e
an

y
as

su
ra

nc
e

on
th

e
R

S
I.

R
es

tr
ic

ti
on

on
U

se

T
hi

s
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
is

in
te

nd
ed

so
le

ly
fo

r
th

e
us

e
of

th
e

D
D

A
B

oa
rd

of
D

ir
ec

to
rs

a n d

th eC
it

y
C

om
m

is
si

onof th
e

C
it

y
of

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y

an
d

m
an

ag
em

en
t

of
th

e
D

D
A

an
d

th
e

C
it

y
of

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y

an d
is no

t
in

te
nd

e
dto bean

d
sh

ou
ld

no
t

be
us

ed
by

an
yo

ne
ot

he
r

th
an

th
es

e
sp

ec
if

ie
d

pa
rt

ie
s.

S
in

ce
re

ly
,

W
W

W

Page 24 of 84



V
re

de
ve

ld
H

ae
fn

er
L

L
C

C
PA

s
an

d
C

on
su

lt
an

ts
D

ou
gl

as
J.

V
re

de
ve

ld
,

C
PA

10
30

2
20

'h
A

ve
nu

e
(6

16
)

44
6-

74
74

G
ra

nd
R

ap
id

s,
M

I
49

53
4

M
ic

ha
el

J.
V

re
de

ve
ld

,
C

PA
C

PA
S

Fa
x

(6
16

)
82

8-
03

07
(6

16
)

64
8-

84
47

D
ec

em
be

r
17

,
20

24

To
th

e
B

oa
rd

of
D

ir
ec

to
rs

C
it

y
of

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y

D
ow

nt
ow

n
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y,
M

ic
hi

ga
n

W
e

ha
ve

au
di

te
d

th
e

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
of

th
e

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l
ac

tiv
it

ie
s

an
d

ea
ch

m
aj

or
fu

nd
of

th
e

C
it

y
of

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y

D
ow

nt
ow

n
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
(t

he
D

D
A

)
fo

r
th

e
ye

ar
en

de
d

Ju
ne

30
,

20
24

.
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l

st
an

da
rd

s
re

qu
ir

e
th

at
w

e
pr

ov
id

e
yo

u
w

it
h

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

ab
ou

t
ou

r
re

sp
on

si
bi

li
ti

es
un

de
r

ge
ne

ra
ll

y
ac

ce
pt

ed
au

di
ti

ng
st

an
da

rd
s

an
d

G
ov

er
nm

en
t

A
ud

it
in

g
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

,
as

w
el

l
as

ce
rt

ai
n

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

re
la

te
d

to
th

e
pl

an
ne

d
sc

op
e

an
d

ti
m

in
g

of
ou

r
au

di
t.

W
e

ha
ve

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed
su

ch
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
in

ou
r

le
tt

er
to

yo
u

da
te

d
N

ov
em

be
r

5,
20

24
.

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l
st

an
da

rd
s

al
so

re
qu

ir
e

th
at

w
e

co
m

m
un

ic
at

e
to

yo
u

th
e

fo
ll

ow
in

g
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
re

la
te

d
to

ou
r

au
di

t.

S
ig

ni
?c

an
t

A
ud

it
M

at
te

rs

Q
ua

li
ta

tiv
e

A
sp

ec
ts

of
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g
P

ra
ct

ic
es

M
an

ag
em

en
t

is
re

sp
on

si
bl

e
fo

r
th

e
se

le
ct

io
n

an
d

us
e

of
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
ac

co
un

ti
ng

po
li

ci
es

.
T

he
si

gn
i?

ca
nt

ac
co

un
ti

ng
po

li
ci

es
us

ed
by

th
e

D
D

A
ar

e
de

sc
ri

be
d

in
N

ot
e

1
to

th
e

fi
na

nc
ia

l
st

at
em

en
ts

.
N

o
ne

w
ac

co
un

ti
ng

po
li

ci
es

w
er

e
ad

op
te

d
an

d
th

e
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
of

ex
is

ti
ng

po
li

ci
es

w
as

no
t

ch
an

ge
d

du
ri

ng
20

24
.

W
e

no
te

d
no

tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

en
te

re
d

in
to

by
th

e
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l

un
it

du
ri

ng
th

e
ye

ar
fo

r
w

hi
ch

th
er

e
is

a
la

ck
of

au
th

or
it

at
iv

e
gu

id
an

ce
or

co
ns

en
su

s
A

ll
si

gn
i?

ca
nt

tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

ha
ve

be
en

re
co

gn
iz

ed
in

th
e

fi
na

nc
ia

l
st

at
em

en
ts

in
th

e
pr

op
er

pe
ri

od
.

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g

es
ti

m
at

es
ar

e
an

in
te

gr
al

pa
rt

of
th

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

pr
ep

ar
ed

by
m

an
ag

em
en

t
an

d
ar

e
ba

se
d

on
m

an
ag

em
en

t's
kn

ow
le

dg
e

an
d

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
ab

ou
t

pa
st

an
d

cu
rr

en
t

ev
en

ts
an

d
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
ab

ou
t

fu
tu

re
ev

en
ts

.
C

er
ta

in
ac

co
un

ti
ng

es
ti

m
at

es
ar

e
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
se

ns
it

iv
e

be
ca

us
e

of
th

ei
r

si
gn

if
ic

an
ce

to
th

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

an
d

be
ca

us
e

of
th

e
po

ss
ib

il
it

y
th

at
fu

tu
re

ev
en

ts
af

fe
ct

in
g

th
em

m
ay

di
ff

er
si

gn
i?

ca
nt

ly
fr

om
th

os
e

ex
pe

ct
ed

.
T

he
m

os
t

se
ns

it
iv

e
es

ti
m

at
es

af
fe

ct
in

g
th

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

w
er

e

M
an

ag
em

en
t‘

s
es

ti
m

at
e

of
th

e
co

m
m

it
te

d
ta

x
In

cr
em

en
t

5
ba

se
d

on
va

ri
ou

s
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
pr

oj
ec

ts
w

it
hi

n
th

e
di

st
ri

ct
.

W
e

ev
al

ua
te

d
th

e
ke

y
fa

ct
or

s
an

d
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
us

ed
to

de
ve

lo
p

th
e

es
ti

m
at

es
in

de
te

rm
in

in
g

th
at

th
ey

ar
e

re
as

on
ab

le
in

re
la

ti
on

to
th

e
?n

an
ca

l
st

at
em

en
ts

ta
ke

n
as

a
w

ho
le

.
D

if
fi

cu
lt

ie
s E

nc
ou

nt
er

ed
in

P
er

fo
rm

in
g

th
e

A
ud

it

W
e

en
co

un
te

re
d

no
si

gn
i?

ca
nt

di
f?

cu
lt

ie
s

in
de

al
in

g
w

rt
h

m
an

ag
em

en
t

In
pe

rf
or

m
in

g
an

d
co

m
pl

et
in

g
ou

r
au

di
t.

C
or

re
ct

ed
an

d
U

nc
or

re
ct

ed
M

is
st

at
em

en
ts

ot
he

r
th

an
th

os
e

th
at

ar
e

tr
iv

ia
l,

an
d

co
m

m
un

ca
te

th
em

to
th

e
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
le

ve
l

of
m

an
ag

em
en

t.
W

e
di

d
no

t
de

te
ct

an
y

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
as

a
re

su
lt

of
au

di
t

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
th

e
re

qu
ir

ed
co

rr
ec

ti
on

by
m

an
ag

em
en

t
th

at
w

er
e

m
at

er
ia

l,
ei

th
er

in
di

vi
du

al
ly

or
in

th
e

ag
gr

eg
at

e,
to

ea
ch

op
in

on
un

it
's

?n
an

C
Ia

ls
ta

te
m

en
ts

ta
ke

n
as

a
w

ho
le

.
D

is
ag

re
em

en
ts

w
it

h
M

an
ag

em
en

t
Fo

r
pu

rp
os

es
of

th
is

le
tt

er
,

pr
of

es
si

on
al

st
an

da
rd

s
de

?n
e

a
di

sa
gr

ee
m

en
t

w
it

h
m

an
ag

em
en

t
as

a
?n

an
ci

al
ac

co
un

ti
ng

,
re

po
rt

in
g,

or
au

di
ti

ng
m

at
te

r,
w

he
th

er
or

no
t

re
so

lv
ed

to
ou

r
sa

ti
sf

ac
ti

on
,

th
at

co
ul

d
be

si
gn

i?
ca

nt
to

th
e

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
or

th
e

au
di

to
r's

re
po

rt
W

e
ar

e
p

ea
se

d
to

re
po

rt
th

at
no

su
ch

di
sa

gr
ee

m
en

ts
ar

os
e

du
ri

ng
th

e
co

ur
se

of
ou

r
au

di
t.

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

W
e

ha
ve

re
qu

es
te

d
ce

rt
ai

n
re

pr
es

en
ta

ti
on

s
fr

om
m

an
ag

em
en

t
th

at
ar

e
in

cl
ud

ed
in

th
e

m
an

ag
em

en
t

re
pr

es
en

ta
ti

on
le

tt
er

da
te

d
D

ec
em

be
r

17
20

24

S pe ct a/ Iz m g

mse
rw

ce
s

togo
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l
an

d
no

np
ra

fi
t

en
ti

ti
es

Page 25 of 84



M
an

ag
em

en
t

C
on

su
lt

at
io

ns
w

it
h

O
th

er
In

de
pe

nd
en

t
A

cc
ou

nt
an

ts
In

so
m

e
ca

se
s,

m
an

ag
em

en
t

m
ay

de
ci

de
to

co
ns

ul
t

w
it

h
ot

he
r

ac
co

un
ta

nt
s

ab
o

ut
a u d it i n gan

d
ac

co
un

ti
ng

m
at

te
rs

,
si

m
il

ar
to

ob
ta

in
in

g
a

”s
ec

on
d

op
in

io
n"

on
ce

rt
ai

n
si

tu
at

io
ns

.I
ta

co
ns

ul
ta

ti
on

in
v

ol
v

es

ap
pl

i
ca

ti
o

nofan ac
co

un
ti

ng
pr

in
ci

pl
e

to
th

e
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l

un
it

's
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

or
a

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n
of

ty
pe

of au
di

to
r's

op
in

io
n

th
at

m
ay

be
ex

pr
es

se
d

on
th

os
e

st
at

em
en

ts
,

ou
r

pr
of

es
si

on
al

st
an

da
rd

s
re

qu
ir

e
th e

c o n s ul ti n gac
co

un
ta

nt
to ch

ec
k

w
it

h
us

to
de

te
rm

in
e

th
at

th
e

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
ha

s
al

l
th

e
re

le
va

nt
fa

ct
s.

To
ou

r
th

er
e

w
er

e
no su

ch
co

ns
ul

ta
ti

on
s

w
it

h
ot

he
r

ac
co

un
ta

nt
s.

O
th

er
A

ud
it

F
in

di
ng

s
or

Is
su

es

W
e

ge
ne

ra
ll

y
di

sc
us

s
a

va
ri

et
y

of
m

at
te

rs
,

in
cl

ud
in

g
th

e
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
of

ac co un ti
n

g

pr
in

ci
pl

es
an

d
au

di
ti

ng
st

an
da

rd
s,

w
it

h
m

an
ag

em
en

t
ea

ch
ye

ar
pr

io
r

to
re

te
nt

io
n

as
th

e
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l

u n it
'

sau
di

to
rs

.H
ow

ev
er

,
th

es
e

di
sc

us
si

on
s

oc
cu

rr
ed

in
th

e
no

rm
al

co
ur

se
of

ou
r

pr
of

es
si

on
al

re
la

ti
on

sh
ip

an
d

o u r

re sp o ns esw
er

e
no

t
a co

nd
it

io
n

to
ou

r
re

te
nt

io
n,

O
th

er
M

at
te

rs

W
e

ap
pl

ie
d

ce
rt

ai
n

li
m

it
ed

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
to

th
e

re
qu

ir
ed

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
( as it

em
iz

ed
in th

e
ta

bl
e

of
co

nt
en

ts
.th

at
su

pp
le

m
en

ts
th

e
ba

si
c

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
.

O
ur

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
co

ns
is

te
d

of in
qu

ir
ie

s
of m

an
ag

em
en

t
re

ga
rd

in
g

th
e

m
et

ho
ds

of
pr

ep
ar

in
g

th
e

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

an
d

co
m

pa
ri

ng
th

e
i f

or co
ns

is
te

nc
y

w
it

h
m

an
ag

em
en

t's
re

sp
on

se
s

to
ou

r
in

qu
ir

ie
s,

th
e

ba
si

c
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

,
an d

ot he rkn
ow

le
d

gew
e

ob
ta

in
ed

du
ri

ng
ou

r
au

di
t

of
th

e
ba

si
c

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
.

W
e

di
d

no
t

au
di

t
th

e
R

S
I

a n d

do no
t

ex
pr

es
s

an op
in

io
n

or
pr

ov
id

e
an

y
as

su
ra

nc
e

on
th

e
R

S
I,

R
es

tr
ic

ti
on

on
U

se

T
hi

s
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
is

in
te

nd
ed

so
le

ly
fo

r
th

e
us

e
of

th
e

D
D

A
B

oa
rd

of
D

ir
ec

to
rs

an d
t h eC

it
y

C
om

m
is

s
io

n
of th

e
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y
an

d
m

an
ag

em
en

t
of

th
e

D
D

A
an

d
th

e
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y
an

d
i no

t
in

te
nd

edto be an
d

sh
ou

ld
no

t
be

us
ed

by
an

yo
ne

ot
he

r
th

an
th

es
e

sp
ec

if
ie

d
pa

rt
ie

s.

S
in

ce
re

ly
,

W
W

W

Page 26 of 84



C
IT

Y
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

E

C
IT

Y
D

O
W

N
T

O
W

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
(A

C
om

po
ne

nt
U ni

t
ofth

e
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y)

A
nn

ua
l

F
in

an
ci

a
lS

ta
te

m
en

ts
Fo

r
th e

E
nd

ed
Ju

ne
30

,
20

24

P
re

p
ar

ed
byC

it
y

T
re

as
ur

er
’s

O
f?

ce

V
re

de
v

el
d

H
ae

fn
erL

L
C

- A
ud

it
om

Page 27 of 84



--l----—
—

--_—
—

-Iua-—
n—

-

Page 28 of 84



26
25

-
7;

]N
J”

J_
‘w

«\
J_

W
JJ

JJ
H

IJ
W

J?
vd

al
g?

J?
qu

au
lm

].

In
de

pe
nd

en
t

A
ud

it
or

s’
R

ep
or

t
M

an
ag

em
en

t’
s

D
is

cu
ss

io
n

an
d

A
na

ly
si

s
B

as
ic

F
in

an
ci

al
S

ta
te

m
en

ts
G

ov
er

nm
en

t-
w

id
e F

in
an

ci
al

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f
N

et
P

os
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

en
to

f
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
F

un
d

F
in

an
ci

al
S

ta
te

m
en

ts
B

al
an

ce
S

he
et

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l F
un

ds
R

ec
on

ci
li

at
io

n o
f

F
un

d
B

al
an

ce
s o

n
th

e
B

al
an

ce
S

he
et

fo
r

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l
F

un
ds

To
N

et
P

os
it

io
n

of
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
on

th
e

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f
P

os
it

io
n

S
ta

te
m

en
to

f
R

ev
en

ue
s,

E
\p

en
di

tu
re

s
an

d
C

ha
ng

e
in

F
un

d
B

al
an

ce
s

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l F
un

ds
R

ec
on

ci
li

at
io

n o
f

th
e

S
ta

te
m

en
to

f
R

ev
en

ue
, E

xp
en

di
tu

re
an

d
C

ha
ng

es
inF

un
d

B
al

an
ce

of
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l F

un
d

to
th

e
S

ta
te

m
en

to
f

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

N
ot

es
to

F
in

an
ci

al
S

ta
te

m
en

ts
R

eq
ui

re
d

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
S

ch
ed

ul
e

of
R

ev
en

ue
s,

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
an

d
ha

ng
e

in
F

un
d

B
al

an
ce

s
B

ud
ge

t t
o

A
ct

ua
l

G
en

er
al

F
un

d
S

pe
ci

al
R

ev
en

ue
F

un
d

-
T

IF
9

S
pe

ci
al

R
ev

en
ue

F
un

d
O

ld
To

w
n

T
lF

N
ot

es
to

R
eq

ui
re

d
S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

In
te

rn
al

C
on

tr
ol

an
d

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e

In
de

pe
nd

en
t A

ud
it

or
‘s

R
ep

or
t o

n
in

te
rn

al
co

nt
ro

l
ov

er
?n

an
ci

al
re

po
rt

in
g,

aot
he

r
m

at
te

rs
ba

se
d

on
an

au
di

t
of

?n
an

ci
al

ta
te

m
en

t
an

d
n

c
m

pl
ia

nc
e

in
ac

co
rd

an
ce

w
it

h
G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
ud

it
in

g
S

ta
nd

ar
d

C
IT

Y
O

F
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

E
D

O
W

N
T

O
W

N
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

(A
C

om
po

ne
nt

U
ni

t
of

t
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y,
M

ic
hi

ga
n)

TA
B

L
E

O
F

C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

PA
G

E

5"
.—

\J
N

00

)0

H 13
14

—
20

Page 29 of 84



---.----—
-a--IIIIE

---—
-

Page 30 of 84



33
31

]]

V
re

de
ve

ld
H

ae
fn

er
L

L
C

C
PA

s
an

d
C

on
su

lt
an

ts
D

ou
gl

as
J.

V
re

de
ve

ld
,

C
PA

10
30

2
20

‘h
A

ve
nu

e
(6

16
)

44
6-

74
74

G
ra

nd
R

ap
id

s,
M

I4
95

34
M

ic
ha

el
J.

V
re

de
ve

ld
,

C
PA

C
PA

S
Fa

x
(6

16
)

82
8-

03
07

(6
16

)
64

8-
84

47

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T A

U
D

IT
O

R
S

’
R

E
P

O
R

T

D
ec

em
be

r
17

, 2
02

4

M
em

be
rs

of
th

e
B

oa
rd

C
it

y
of

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y

D
ow

nt
ow

n
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y,
M

ic
hi

ga
n

R
ep

or
t

on
th

e
F

in
an

ci
al

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

O
pi

nl
on

s

W
e

ha
ve

au
di

te
d

th
e

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

of
th

e
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l

ac
tiv

it
ie

s
an

d
ea

ch
m

aj
or

fu
nd

of
th

e
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y
D

ow
nt

ow
n

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

(t
he

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
),

a
C

om
po

ne
nt

U
ni

to
f

th
e

C
it

y
of

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y,

M
ic

hi
ga

n,
as

of
an

d
fo

r
th

e
ye

ar
en

de
d

Ju
ne

30
,

20
24

,
an

d
th

e
re

la
te

d
no

te
s

to
th

e
?n

an
ci

a
st

at
em

en
ts

,
w

hi
ch

co
ll

ec
tiv

el
y

co
m

pr
is

e
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

‘s
ba

si
c

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
as

li
st

ed
in

th
e

ta
bl

e
of

co
nt

en
ts

.

In
ou

r
op

in
io

n,
th

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

re
fe

rr
ed

to
ab

ov
e

pr
es

en
t

fa
ir

ly
.

in
al

l
m

at
er

ia
l

re
sp

ec
ts

,
th

e
re

sp
ec

tiv
e

?n
an

ci
al

po
si

ti
on

of
th

e
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l

ac
tiv

it
ie

s
an

d
ea

ch
m

aj
or

fu
nd

of
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

, a
s

of
Ju

ne
30

,
20

24
,

an
d

th
e

re
sp

ec
tiv

e
ch

an
ge

s
in

?n
an

ci
al

po
si

ti
on

fo
r

th
e

ye
ar

th
en

en
de

d
in

ac
co

rd
an

ce
w

it
h

ac
co

un
ti

ng
pr

in
ci

pl
es

ge
ne

ra
ll

y
ac

ce
pt

ed
in

th
e

U
ni

te
d

S
ta

te
s

of
A

m
er

ic
a.

B
as

is
fo

r
O

pi
ni

on
s

W
e

co
nd

uc
te

d
ou

r
au

di
t

in
ac

co
rd

an
ce

w
it

h
au

di
ti

ng
st

an
da

rd
s

ge
ne

ra
ll

y
ac

ce
pt

ed
in

th
e

U
ni

te
d

S
ta

te
s

of
A

m
er

ic
a

an
d

th
e

st
an

da
rd

s
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

to
?n

an
ci

al
au

di
ts

co
nt

ai
ne

d
in

G
ov

er
nm

en
tA

ud
it

in
g

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
,

is
su

ed
by

th
e

C
om

pt
ro

ll
er

G
en

er
al

of
th

e
U

ni
te

d
S

ta
te

s.
O

ur
re

sp
on

si
bi

li
ti

es
un

de
r

th
os

e
st

an
da

rd
s

ar
e

fu
rt

he
r

de
sc

ri
be

d
in

th
e

A
ud

it
or

's
R

es
po

ns
ib

il
it

ie
s

fo
r

th
e

A
ud

it
of

th
e

F
in

an
ci

al
S

ta
te

m
en

ts
se

ct
io

n
of

ou
r

re
po

rt
W

e
ar

e
re

qu
ir

ed
to

be
in

de
pe

nd
en

t
of

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
an

d
to

m
ee

t
ou

r
ot

he
r

et
hi

ca
l

re
sp

on
si

bi
li

ti
es

,
in

ac
co

rd
an

ce
w

it
h

th
e

re
le

va
nt

et
hi

ca
l

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

re
la

ti
ng

to
ou

r
au

di
t.

W
e

be
li

ev
e

th
at

th
e

au
di

t
ev

id
en

ce
w

e
ha

ve
ob

ta
in

ed
is

su
f?

ci
en

t
an

d
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
to

pr
ov

id
e

a
ba

si
s

fo
ro

ur
au

di
t

op
in

io
ns

.

R
es

po
ns

ib
il

it
ie

s
of

M
an

ag
em

en
t

fo
r

th
e

F
in

an
ci

al
S

ta
te

m
en

ts

M
an

ag
em

en
t

is
re

sp
on

si
bl

e
fo

r
th

e
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n
an

d
fa

ir
pr

es
en

ta
ti

on
of

th
e

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
in

ac
co

rd
an

ce
w

it
h

ac
co

un
ti

ng
pr

in
ci

pl
es

ge
ne

ra
ll

y
ac

ce
pt

ed
in

th
e

U
ni

te
d

S
ta

te
s

of
A

m
er

ic
a.

an
d

fo
r

th
e

de
si

gn
,

in
pr

ep
ar

in
g

th
e

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
,

m
an

ag
em

en
t

is
re

qu
ir

ed
to

ev
al

ua
te

w
he

th
er

th
er

e
ar

e
co

nd
it

io
ns

or
ev

en
ts

,
co

ns
id

er
ed

in
th

e
ag

gr
eg

at
e,

th
at

ra
is

e
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
do

ub
t

ab
ou

t
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

‘s
ab

il
it

y
to

co
nt

in
ue

as
a

go
in

g
co

nc
er

n
fo

r
tw

el
ve

m
on

th
s

be
yo

nd
th

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
t

da
te

,
in

cl
ud

in
g

an
y

cu
rr

en
tl

y
kn

ow
n

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

th
at

m
ay

ra
is

e
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
do

ub
t

sh
or

tl
y

th
er

ea
ft

er
.

A
ud

it
or

‘s
R

es
po

ns
ib

il
it

ie
s

fo
r

th
e

A
ud

it
of

th
e

F
in

an
ci

al
S

ta
te

m
en

ts
O

ur
ob

je
ct

iv
es

ar
e

to
ob

ta
in

re
as

on
ab

le
as

su
ra

nc
e

ab
ou

t
w

he
th

er
th

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

as
a

w
ho

le
ar

e
fr

ee
fr

om
m

at
er

ia
l

m
is

st
at

em
en

t.w
he

th
er

du
e

to
fr

au
d

or
er

ro
r,

an
d

to
is

su
e

an
au

di
to

r’
s

re
po

rt
th

at
in

cl
ud

es
ou

r
op

in
io

ns
.

R
ea

so
na

bl
e

as
su

ra
nc

e
is

a
hi

gh
le

ve
l

of
as

su
ra

nc
e

bu
t

is
no

t
ab

so
lu

te
as

su
ra

nc
e

an
d

th
er

ef
or

e
is

no
t

a
gu

ar
an

te
e

th
at

an
au

di
t

co
nd

uc
te

d
in

ac
co

rd
an

ce
w

it
h

ge
ne

ra
ll

y
ac

ce
pt

ed
au

di
ti

ng
st

an
da

rd
s

an
d

G
ov

er
nm

en
t

A
ud

it
in

g
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

w
il

la
lw

ay
s

de
te

ct
a

m
at

er
ia

l
m

is
st

at
em

en
t

w
he

n
it

ex
is

ts
.

T
he

ri
sk

of
no

t
de

te
ct

in
g

a
m

at
er

ia
lm

is
st

at
em

en
t

re
su

lt
in

g
fr

om
fr

au
d

is
hi

gh
er

th
an

fo
r

on
e

re
su

lt
in

g
fr

om
er

ro
r,

as
fr

au
d

m
ay

in
vo

lv
e

co
ll

us
io

n,
fo

rg
er

y,
in

te
nt

io
na

l
om

is
si

on
s,

m
is

re
pr

es
en

ta
ti

on
s,

or
th

e
ov

er
ri

de
of

in
te

rn
al

co
nt

ro
l.

M
is

st
at

em
en

ts
ar

e
co

ns
id

er
ed

m
at

er
ia

l
if

th
er

e
is

a
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
li

ke
li

ho
od

th
at

,
in

di
vi

du
al

ly
or

in
th

e
ag

gr
eg

at
e,

th
ey

w
ou

ld
in

?u
en

ce
th

e
ju

dg
m

en
t

m
ad

e
by

a
re

as
on

ab
le

us
er

ba
se

d
on

th
e

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
.

.1
.

S
pe

ci
al

iz
in

g
in

se
rv

ic
es

to
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l

an
d

no
np

ro
fi

t
en

ti
ti

es

Page 31 of 84



0050:0500
0:0

0:580:
0:505:

:0>
o

.9500
.0505:

02:053.:
05

9:020:00
:_

00:00:0:m
05:03:

5055030
5:;

00:00:0000
:_

005:0:00
50:0

:0
:0

:0:
_0:m

0::_:0
0_00:0:

:0:.r
00:05:58

:0
:0

95000:
_0_0:0:_:

:0>
0

6:500
_0::0::_

0_>
::05:<

05

:0
000:0>

_:00::0
05

:0
8550

:0
0030::

0:
:0:

0:0
.m

:_:00::05
:0

0:300:
05

0:0
00:0:0500

0:0
0:580:

_0_0:0:_:
:05

.9500
_0::0::_

:0
0:500:

:30
:0

00000
05

00:0000
0:

20—
00 0: 0000:

:05
:0

0005::
0:...

0.6505
:050

0:0
05050050

50:0
0:0

0:005:00
0:90:50:

.030.:0
05030::

50:00
5:;

00:0:0500
0:_

:0
0:00:

.50
:0

0:0
950:0:

_0_0:0::
:05

.8500
.0505:

05:05:01
05:0

85502050
:00

:0
.vw

om
.5

:0050000
00:00

:000:
:30

00:00_
00.0

0>
0:

03
00:00:05.

m
§5z<

5055036
5:;

00:00:0000
:_

00:00:03
95:03::

3055960
3

00.5501
950.0001

.550

.00:0:=
000

50

0030::
:0

55:00
:0

000::x0
0:

8525
50:05:30

5:5
0:

0030:: :0:
00

00500005
025:

05
003000:

5:05:05:
05

:o
00:0:3000

50
0030::

:0
5530

:0
000::x0

:0:
00

0:5
0505850

06:05:
2000

05:0

550
:00

0550
005030

0;
0000.38:

:050
0:0

.0::050:0:0
_0_0:0:_:

0:000
05

00:50::
:30

0:
0005000:

0.::050m
0:055:3

>
0:0:0_0:00

:0:
5:05:25

05
9.500500

0:0
5:05:25

05
05:009.:

:0
000505

05
:3000

::050m
0:05

:0
00:50::

:0
00:00:00

:05;
.00:05<

:0
00:06

00:5:
05

:_
00.00000 >

__0:0:00

00:00:50
055500

5:5
00:00:0000

:_
:0_:05:0::_

b05050aaa0
00:300: 05

0:
00500005

00:5:
50:00

02.000
03:

0:5
.0058

00:20::
:0

6:50:80
._0:0:0:0:0

20:02:00
:0

:_
05050.00

00:05
0:00:

05
9:00.:

:0:
m

:_::000:
06:05.:

:0
:00

_0_::0000
:0

0n
0:

:_
0:020:00

055
0:00m

00:00:06
m

:_:::000<

_0::05::0>
oo

05
:3

00:30:
0: 0505200

06:2:
0000

05
:0

:0:
0

:0:
5305.0

0:0
50500055

:0
a.

0:800:
05

0_
:0_:05:0::_

:26
0505000

06:00.:
2000

05
50520000

0:
00::000:: 00

vw
3:25

:0
00000

:0
5:05:25

80:0:500
50:09.50

05
0:0

:
.5095

n
0000...::0

00220
0:0

:o_00:00_0

0.::050m
0:05

05
:05

0:500:
00:05<

:0
00:06

00:5:
05

:_
00::0000

>
__0:0:0m02905::

05520090:
20:05:05:

5030:3356
00.5.03:

0:50
05

05:0
85:02

0;
:05

0:0505
00:0.0:-_0:::00

.0505:
:_0:00

0:0
0050::

:_030
505590

50:0
05

:0
055:

0:0
0:80

00::03
05

.0:0::05
:050

m
:050

.m
:_0:0m

0: 00:0::0>
0m

5:;
009050

0005
5:?

200535500
0:

02500:
0:0

0>
>

.05:
:0

00:00
0305000:

0
:0:

500:8
m

som 0
00

03558
0:

3:30
05:05.2

05
5000

3:00
05:50:30

000:

:05
0:000:30

05
:_

00:00_0:00
.0::0>

0
:0

0:0_:_0:00
0:0

0:05
50590:.—

::0
:_

:05053
000.050

.
2:050:00

.0655:

05
:0

85050005
__0:0>

0
05

80290
00

:03
00

50500055
>

0
0005

00:05:00
0553080

500550
:0

000:0.005000:
05

0:0
000:

005:0:
9550000

:0
000:0:0::o:::0

05
0:0:_0>

m
_ .

00000506
0_55:8

20:0
0:

_>
_m

:_0:000<.8580
.0505:

02:05.?
05

:0
000:0>

_:00::0

05
:0

5550
:0

m
:_000.ax0

:0
00005:

05
:o:

:0:
:30

.000:0:05:0:_0
05

:_
20:02:00

0:0

:05
00500090 5030

:9000
0:

:00:0
:_

:_0:0
05

0:
5920:

65:00
.0505:

:0
m

:_0:0:0:00:=
:0

E
030

.
.0::050:0:0

00:05:
05

:_
00502005

0:0
053050

05
050000:

080030
.0000

:00:
0

:0
655538

0020::
0050009:

:80
00:0:

0005
0:0205000: 0050009:

:_0:0
58:00

0:0
:9000

0:0
.:0::0

:0

030::
0:

0:0
:0505s

0505200
0:52:

05
:0

5050:5005
_0_:0:0E

:0
00.0:

05000000
0:0

@
502

.
0:030

05
50:92::

50:05:00.0 .0:0_000:0:0
50:50::

0:0
50500::

.0:0_000:0:0
00:0:0xm

. .
“0:5

00:00:05
00:00:50

0:50.00 00::0000 >
__0:0:0m

5:5
00:00:0000

:_
30:0

:0
0:550:00

:_

Page 32 of 84



?l
en

V
Jn

u
H

D
U

D
E

[

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
’S

D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

A N DA
N

A
LY

S
IS

Page 33 of 84



Page 34 of 84



JE
W

IU
H

U
D

U
D

U
D

M
an

ag
em

en
t’

s
D

is
cu

ss
io

n
an

d
A

na
ly

si
s

A
s

m
an

ag
em

en
t

of
th

e
D

ow
nt

ow
n

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

(t
he

“A
ut

ho
ri

ty
”)

,
w

e
of

fe
r

re
ad

er
s

of
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

’s
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

th
is

na
rr

at
iv

e
ov

er
vi

ew
an

d
an

al
ys

is
of

th
e

?n
an

ci
al

ac
tiv

it
ie

s
of

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
fo

r
th

e
?s

ca
l

ye
ar

en
de

d
Ju

ne
30

,2
02

4.

F
in

an
ci

al
H

ig
hl

ig
ht

s

I
T

he
as

se
ts

of
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

ex
ce

ed
ed

it
s

li
ab

il
it

ie
s

at
th

e
cl

os
e

of
th

e
m

os
t

re
ce

nt
?s

ca
l

ye
ar

by
$9

,6
30

,7
95

(n
et

po
si

ti
on

).
I

T
he

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
’s

to
ta

l
ne

t
po

si
ti

on
in

cr
ea

se
d

by
$4

94
,1

57
.

-
A

s
of

th
e

cl
os

e
of

th
e

cu
rr

en
t

?s
ca

l
ye

ar
,

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
‘s

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l
fu

nd
s

re
po

rt
ed

co
m

bi
ne

d
en

di
ng

fu
nd

ba
la

nc
es

of
$7

,6
6l

,9
l2

an
in

cr
ea

se
of

$5
29

,1
60

in
co

m
pa

ri
so

n
w

it
h

th
e

pr
io

r y
ea

r.

O
ve

rv
ie

w
of

th
e

F
in

an
ci

al
S

ta
te

m
en

ts

T
hi

s
di

sc
us

si
on

an
d

an
al

ys
is

is
in

te
nd

ed
to

se
rv

e
as

an
in

tr
od

uc
ti

on
to

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
’s

ba
si

c
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

.
T

he
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

’s
ba

si
c

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
co

m
pr

is
e

th
re

e
co

m
po

ne
nt

s:
1)

go
ve

rn
m

en
t-

w
id

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

,
2)

fu
nd

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
.

an
d

3)
no

te
s

to
th

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

.

G
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
id

e
F

in
an

ci
al

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

T
he

go
ve

rn
m

en
t—

w
id

e ?
na

nc
ia

ls
ta

te
m

en
ts

ar
e

de
si

gn
ed

to
pr

ov
id

e
re

ad
er

s
w

it
h

a
br

oa
d

ov
er

vi
ew

of
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

’s
?n

an
ce

s.i
n

a
m

an
ne

r
si

m
il

ar
to

a
pr

iv
at

e-
se

ct
or

bu
si

ne
ss

.

T
he

st
at

em
en

t
of

ne
t

po
si

ti
on

pr
es

en
ts

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

on
al

l
of

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
’s

as
se

ts
an

d
li

ab
il

it
ie

s
w

it
h

th
e

di
ff

er
en

ce
re

po
rt

ed
as

ne
t

po
si

ti
on

.
O

ve
r

ti
m

e,
in

cr
ea

se
s

or
de

cr
ea

se
s

in
ne

t
po

si
ti

on
m

ay
se

rv
e

as
a

us
ef

ul
in

di
ca

to
r

of
w

he
th

er
th

e
?n

an
ci

al
po

si
ti

on
of

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
is

im
pr

ov
in

g
or

de
te

ri
or

at
in

g.

T
he

st
at

em
en

t
of

ac
tiv

it
ie

s
pr

es
en

ts
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
sh

ow
in

g
ho

w
th

e
go

ve
rn

m
en

t’
s

ne
t

po
si

ti
on

ch
an

ge
d

du
ri

ng
th

e
m

os
t

re
ce

nt
?s

ca
l

ye
ar

.
A

ll
ch

an
ge

s
in

ne
t

po
si

ti
on

ar
e

re
po

rt
ed

as
so

on
as

th
e

un
de

rl
yi

ng
ev

en
t

gi
vi

ng
ri

se
to

th
e

ch
an

ge
oc

cu
rs

,
re

ga
rd

le
ss

of
th

e
ti

m
in

g
of

re
la

te
d

ca
sh

?o
w

s.
T

hu
s,

re
ve

nu
es

an
d

ex
pe

ns
es

ar
e

re
po

rt
ed

in
th

is
st

at
em

en
t

fo
r

so
m

e
it

em
s

th
at

w
il

l
on

ly
re

su
lt

in
ca

sh
?o

w
s

in
fu

tu
re

?s
ca

l
pe

ri
od

s
(e

.g
.,

ea
rn

ed
bu

t
un

us
ed

va
ca

ti
on

le
av

e)
.

B
ot

h
of

th
e

go
ve

rn
m

en
t—

w
id

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

di
st

in
gu

is
h

fu
nc

ti
on

s o
f

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
th

at
ar

e
pr

in
ci

pa
ll

y
su

pp
or

te
d

by
ta

xe
s

an
d

in
te

rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l
re

ve
nu

es
(g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

ac
tiv

it
ie

s)
fr

om
ot

he
r

fu
nc

ti
on

s
th

at
ar

e
in

te
nd

ed
to

re
co

ve
r

al
l

or
a

si
gn

i?
ca

nt
po

rt
io

n
of

th
ei

r
co

st
s

th
ro

ug
h

us
er

fe
es

an
d

ch
ar

ge
s

(b
us

in
es

s-
ty

pe
ac

tiv
it

ie
s)

.
T

he
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

’s
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l

ac
tiv

it
y

is
ec

on
om

ic
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
T

he
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

ha
s

no
T

he
go

ve
rn

m
en

t-
w

id
e

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
in

cl
ud

e
on

ly
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

it
se

lf
.

T
he

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
ha

s
no

le
ga

ll
y

se
pa

ra
te

co
m

po
ne

nt
un

it
s

fo
r

w
hi

ch
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

is
?n

an
ci

al
ly

ac
co

un
ta

bl
e.

T
he

go
ve

rn
m

en
t-

w
id

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

ca
n

be
fo

un
d

on
pa

ge
s

8—
9o

f
th

is
re

po
rt

.

F
un

d
F

in
an

ci
al

A
fu

nd
is

a
gr ou pi ng

of re
la

te
d

ac
co

un
ts

th
at

ar
e

us
ed

tom
ai

nt
ai

i
co

nt
ro

l
ov

er
re

so
ur

ce
s

th
at

ha
ve

be
en

se
gr

eg
at

ed
fo

r
ac

tiv
it

i
esor ob

je
ct

iv
es

.
T

he
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

.
li

ke
th

er
st

at
e

an
d

lo
ca

l
go

ve
rn

m
en

ts
.

us
es

fu
nd

ac
co

un
ti

n
g

to en
su

r
ean

d
de

m
on

st
ra

te
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e
w

it
h

?n
an

ce
-r

el
at

ed
le

ga
l

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

.
T

he
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

on
ly

go ve
r

nm en
t

alfu
nd

s.
T

he
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

do
es

no
t

m
ai

nt
ai

n
en

te
rp

ri
se

or ?d
uc

ia
ry

fu
nd

s.

11
—

w
ny

vn
s

Page 35 of 84



.30»

.82.:
E

000:
$2:

0::
:0

$20
05

:0
35.39%

.3
$2.50:

3:000:90
£03:

51053:.
0.: :o

00.8
0::

:—
.:oE

m
om305E

:
m

,:?...:::0>
om

~ 0:o
5:835

3:8...
0

w
:05::

:0>
o

0>
:0m

b2:
55:8:

:0:
n..0=

..:0:08:
m

<

num
b—

25‘
30:05,.—

03B
-.:0E

:..0>
00

£033
085

:23
00:31:80

0:26:95:
8

5:05:85
b??E

oiasm
3:30:

0.:
@

0235
:00:

032.
3.30:8

:om
thoo

g0m
cam

2.5.":
0::0>

0..
300%

0::
3.55::m

: :0:
33::

33:50:30
B

E
E

:
:0

3:35
bro—

=
34. 0:;

::_:a=
::.:::

.550

:82
35%

8-:
w

ow
s::o

:55:
0:

:00
3:25:03

36:05.:
05

o:
38:

0:;
2:25:80

50:05.:
3...:

9.5
0U

_3-::0E
E

O
>

ow
0::

E
@

0255
30::

0:: .:om
E

uE
am

S
uE

.=5
0

o:
_:_::0m

m
0

2
2E

.
com

m
a—

:85 3:03:20:
0:39:

00:0:
0:...

8:050:8w
30:55:

0::
3

00:07:

9:80..
$.20

2.3
m

0&
:&

:0
:55:

0:
:00

m
::0E

0:S
m

36:05.:
:25:

_S
:0E

E
o>

om
0:9

20:3:
5.3::

0:
o:

3:020:00
0a

:055
:o

:80
avg":

0::0>
0M

.2003
“F

r
:38.

20
0:0

8
”F

r
65.:

35:00
0::

$05.:
00:5

:0
.6:

80:20....
:5:

E
m

om
S

E
o

:5.
$236530

$2505:
:0

::0E
0:E

m
005.:

_~::0:.E
0>

om
0::

E
:5

:02?
00:23

m
ug:

_§:0E
E

0>
ow

0::
E

b05030
3280::

m
:5:08:85

.35.:
_S

:0E
:..0>

ow
3336::

00:5
0:552:

£553..
2F

.q0..:..>
.:0a

330E
503».

“E
:

?§b§§£§0>
ew

503:0:
:om

E
E

E
oo£5

0:05:00:
8

5:350:80:
a

033::
30:03:

:5:
E

m
ow

E
?o:5.

.m
0:::_u:0nx0

@
0530:

:0
::0E

0:S
m

m
ug:

.S
:0E

:..0>
ow0::

:5
$05

005.3
205.:

3:05:55»
05

50m
@

5300:
9:055:

5.2.30:
m

.::0:.:..0>
ow0:: :o

809::
E

0:.w
:o_

05
2:30:02:

5:89
b2:

20—
000.. .8

w
E

o—
u

am
35.53%

335:5
023-::0E

E
O

>
om0::

E
3:3:33

N
E

§E
E

O
>

Q
M

5.:
3:03.:

5:08:85
3:85

5:3
€§x3~§=

§x0>
om

5.:
3.58::

5:08:85
05

B
E

E
S

8
5:00.. m

:
:: .3:0E

0:S
m

_a_0:::..:
0E

>
a.::0E

E
0>

ow0:: :o
:05

S
E

:
539:0:

m
:£05.:

_8:0E
E

0>
ow

:0
0:00.:05

02.00%
:

$308233:
w

:_0=
::..:

5.2480:
m

.::0E
:..0>

om aw
:_:u=

:~>
0E

3:09.
0:

:38
5:05:02:

:05
.30»

38::
0::.:o

::0
0::

:0
0303?:

30:330..
03%

:0m
m\0

m
00§~§

:0
m

::03
00

600.580:
03%

.:03
\0

383::
B

E
30%

... .5073?
:o

300.:
3:060:8m

36:05.:
95.:

_:::0E
:..0>

ow
£58280.

30:05.:
023.::0:=

:0>
ow05

005::
$0533.:

0:09.035
30:05.:

023-::0E
E

0>
ow05

E
m

0.=
..>

.:0u N
S

§S
E

03M
0:

0.5%
E

aves
8

0::
€§b§=

w
§§§o®

.w
w

aaksgu?sw
gb

Page 36 of 84



ja
g—

I‘
d

l.9
97

.l1
,9

97
,]

10
7,

06
4,

45
3

6,
68

5,
31

2
56

9,
23

2
45

4,
21

6

$
9,

63
0,

79
5

9,
]

36
,6

38

T
he

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
’s

ne
t

po
si

ti
on

re
?e

ct
s

it
s

re
st

ri
ct

ed
ne

t
po

si
ti

on
fu

t
ur

e
ex

pe
nd

it
u

re
s

w
it

hi
n

th
e

gu
id

el
in

e
of

th
e

ta
x

in
cr

em
en

t
?n

an
ce

di
st

ri
ct

pl
an

s
an

d
un

re
st

ri
ct

ed
n et

p os it
i

o n,w
hi

ch
m

ay
beus

ed
to m

ee
t

th
e

go
ve

rn
m

en
t’

s
on

go
in

g
ob

li
ga

ti
on

s
to

ci
ti

ze
n

an
d

cr
ed

it
or

s.

A
t

th
e

en
d

of
th

e
cu

rr
en

t
?s

ca
l

ye
ar

,
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

is
ab

le
to

po
si

ti
veba

la
nc

es
inal

l
ca

te
go

ri
e

of ne
t

po
si

ti
on

.

T
he

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
’s

ne
t

po
si

ti
on

in
cr

ea
se

d
by

$4
94

,]
57

ke
y

hi
gh

li
g

ht
ar

e
a fo

ll
w

s:

. T
he

in
cr

ea
se

in
ne

t
po

si
ti

on
fo

r
20

24
co

m
pa

re
d

to
an

e of$ 84
.3

1in 20
23

‘
P

ro
pe

rt
y

ta
xe

s
in

cr
ea

se
d

by
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y

$2
69

00
0

du
e

in
la

rg
e

pa
rt

to
a si gn i? ca ntin

cr
ea

se
inth

e
ca

pt
ur

ed
va

lu
e

of
th

e
T

IF
97

pl
an

an
d

20
24

be
in

g
th

e
ev

en
th

ye
ar

of
ca

pt
ur

e
fo rth

e
O

ld
To

w
n

T
IF

pl
an

.
O

pe
ra

ti
ng

gr
an

ts
de

cr
ea

se
d

by
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y

$5
55

,0
00

du
e

in
la

rg
e

pa
rt

th
e

M
E

D
gr

an
t

fo
r

up
gr

ad
in

g
do

w
nt

ow
n

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
be

in
g

co
m

pl
et

ed
in

20
23

.
To

ta
l

ex
pe

ns
e

ed by ap
pr

ox
im

at
e

ly$1
3,

00
0,

w
it

h
O

ld
To

w
n

T
IF

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

s
to

co
ns

tr
uc

ti
11

pr
oj

ec
ts

in
cr

ea
si

ng
by $8

50
,

00
0

an
d

D
D

A
ge

ne
ra

l
op

er
at

in
g

ex
pe

nd
it

ur
es

de
cr

ea
si

ng
by

$7
13

,0
00

du
e

to
co

m
pl

et
io

n
of

pr
oj

e
ct

s
in20

23
.

G
ov

e
m

m
e

nt
al

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

C
ur

re
nt

as
se

ts

N
on

C
ur

re
nt

as
se

ts

To
ta

l
A

ss
et

s

L
on

g-
te

nn
li

ab
il

it
ie

s

To
ta

l
L

ia
bi

li
ti

es
N

et
P

os
it

io
n

N
et

in
ve

st
m

en
t

in
ca

pi
ta

l
R

es
tr

ic
te

d
U

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d

$
8,

33
3,

99
6

$
8 , 1 2 6 , 4 6 1

1,
99

7,
] 1

0
1, 9 9 7, 1 1 0

10
,3

31
,1

06

28
,2

27
41

,
85

6
67

2,
08

4
94 5, 07 7

70
0,

31
1

98 6, 93 3

D
ow

nt
o

w
n

D ev el op m en tA
ut

ho
ri

ty
's

N
et

P
os

ti
on

Ju
ne

30

20
23

‘!

Page 37 of 84



.m
vw

?m
w

m
o030.55

“00892:: :a
2

33:58
m

om
“:5

3
com

—
00:05

:55
E

350
m

.b_:o5:<
05

.3
00:23

95
0...: .30»

H
om

e 0:250
05

w
E

E
Q

00:36:33
:55

.8050
.82

no 0:080:
Y

om
3:80.50:

00:23
:5:

3:93:25
00:30:35

05¢
:32

8
00:23

E
S

...
U

0:w
_m

m
m

:= BE
E

S
8

1:8:
on

.92:
g

56:5:
30:5»

33:00
05

go
0532.:

a
w

<
.n333%

055
0:5:

.2050
0:10

0052.3
:5:

:0:w
_m

m
m

:=
.30»

385
20.55

05
m

o0:0
0.:

:<
.b_._o£=

<
05

m
o23

w
:_§._0m

o
.320

05
$

:55
.8050

0;...

3:66
m

2. 03:23::
05

$0
050:0:

05
:8

w
:_o:0%

:8
.25

032:3:
:5

3:250:
m

:m
m

vhvoo?w 500%
5::

05
5.5»

:om
tm

m
?oo :_

92:38
go

80055
:0

.2040m
e

.«o
80:23

33
w

:_u:0
u0:5:.80

:0ton0:
m

ug—
E _S

:0E
E

0>
ow

E
bro?sxx

05
‘.50»

H
om

e
€0.55

05
yo

:5
05

.3
m

<
:8»

$8:
05

00
2.0

05
anm

E
E

S
Q

m:8
052:5:

30.580:
:0:

m
L

:0E
:._0>

ow a
m

o 0.530.:
.500:

a
8

03%
b2:

0.0233
E

§K
N

~0=
M

§6§
c2525:

5
.3:0E

0.__=
_u0._M

E
S

H
—

0::
M

D
T

—
053..

05
m

?m
m

am
a

:_
5.03

a
555595

:05
M

00580:
033333.“?

08:23
:5... $2553

nm
ayo—

E8:33.00:
:0

3:05:35
0:38:

2
?

€§\
E

E
0E

§0>
0M

m
.b_:o?s<

05
m

o
«:03

05.
9.35%

33055959

£55233:
1&

0— u0~:_0._.00:a:c
?rs

00:33:50
0:30:95:

E
m

0.50:0
8

w
as—

=
58:23m

80:
bro£=

<
0::

5:30
:08:

m
<

30:...”—
02555030

05
.3

?ux—
:30.E

on—
«E

h

96de
m

m
.8.

8m
m

30>
.

S
v.8

9333:
:07.

-m
?m

m
m

w
W

6
n1

m
.30

L
o

w
?u?w

ug
m

auve“00%
7.3.?

[2qu
gam

m
a...“6:

E
ow

n?zu

231..“
x;

m
m

...“
58:20.3:

0.35:0qu

w
w

w
aw

nw
w

5.2%
gam

m
a...»

3:33”
R

aw

2.!”
”m

g.
m

m
??m

u Eu .
3%

:
vuuu?m

uab
am

m
vm

i.
”a.“m

m
-w

m
ug

.E
vm

ow
m

35:0»:
.2300

0.93.:
.uH

Jo».
m

E
m

a:H
um

m
u

S
un"...

as
0L

nthu
m

?nbuo
gaw

k
m

2-
-3:

w
300:3

E
m

ym
?u

00559;:
3.:on

3:354.
?uuw

aE
P

roO

nnon
«.m

ou

cm
0:3.

socm
om.07.

E
39:50

3.33554.
50:30.0.6Q

5:89:09

Page 38 of 84



._
?.

7‘
w

E
_.

m
U

D
U

ni
B

T
he

T
IF

97
S

pe
ci

al
R

ev
en

ue
F

un
d

ha
d

a
fu

nd
ba

la
nc

e
of

$6
,2

86
, 3

25 ,
in

cr
ea

s
ed$7

42
,

57
8

al
th

ou
gh

an
ti

ci
pa

te
d

to
de

cr
ea

se
$6

65
, 6

42
.

T
hi

s
di

ff
er

en
ce

w
as

at
tr

ib
ut

ed
to

ac tu al

ex
p

en
di

tu
re

sbe
in

g
un

de
r

bu
dg

et
be

ca
us

e
of

th
e

ti
m

in
g

of
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
pr

oj
ec

ts
th

e
di

st
ri

ct
ha

s
co

m
m

it
te

d
to

.

T
he

O
ld

To
w

n
T

IF
S

pe
ci

al
R

ev
en

ue
F

un
d

ha
s

a
fu

nd
ba

la
nc

e
of

$7
99

,
55

5,
a de

cr
e

as
e

of $3
27

,9
83

co
m

pa
re

d
to

a
pr

oj
ec

te
d

de
cr

ea
se

of
$8

50
,3

14
.

T
he

ti
m

in
g

of
di

st
ri

ct
fu

nd
ed

co
ns

t
ru

ct
i

on

pr
oj

ec
t

sw
as

th
e

ke
y

fa
ct

or
in

th
e

in
cr

ea
se

d
fu

nd
ba

la
nc

e
fo

r
th

e
O

ld
To

w
n

T
IF

F
un

d.

E
co

no
m

ic
Fa

ct
or

s
an

d
N

ex
t

Y
ea

r’
s

B
ud

ge
ts

T
he

fo
ll

ow
in

g
fa

ct
or

s
w

er
e

co
ns

id
er

ed
in

pr
ep

ar
in

g
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

’s
bu

dg
et

fo rth
e

20
24

-2
5

?s
ca

l
ye

ar
:

0
W

or
k

on
th

e
L

ow
er

B
oa

rd
m

an
/O

tt
aw

ay
R

iv
er

w
al

k
in

cl
ud

in
g

a$1 m
il

li
on

M
E

D
C

gr
an

t
an

d
a

$9
00

,0
00

E
G

L
E

gr
an

t.
W

or
k

on
R

ot
ar

y
S

qu
ar

e
in

cl
ud

in
g

us
e

of
th

e
$l

m
il

li
on

gr
an

t
fr

o
m

R ot ar yC
ha

ri
ti

es
.

W
or

k
on

tw
o-

w
ay

S
ta

te
S

tr
ee

t
P

il
ot

P
ro

je
ct

.
A

ss
is

ta
nc

e
w

it
h

do
w

nt
ow

n s
tr

ee
ts

ca
pe

an
d

sn
ow

m
el

t
pr

oj
ec

ts
.

T
ra

ns
it

io
ni

ng
A

ut
o

pa
rk

in
g

em
pl

oy
ee

s
to

th
e

C
it

y
pr

im
ar

y
go

ve
r

nm
en

t

pa
yr

ol
l

.

R
eq

ue
st

s
fo

r
In

fo
rm

at
io

n

T
hi

s
?n

an
ci

al
re

po
rt

is
de

si
gn

ed
to

pr
ov

id
e

a
ge

ne
ra

l
ov

er
vi

ew
of

th
e

?n
an

ce
s

fo
r

al
l

th
os

e
w

it
h

an
in

te
re

st
in

th
e

go
ve

rn
m

en
t’

s
?n

an
ce

s.
Q

ue
st

io
ns

co
nc

er
ni

ng
an

y
of

in
f

or m
a

ti
o

npr
ov

id
ed

inth
is

re
po

rt
or

re
qu

es
ts

fo
r

ad
di

ti
on

al
?n

an
ci

al
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
sh

ou
ld

be
ad

dr
es

se
d

t o
t h eA

ut
h

or
it

y’
sE

xe
cu

tiv
e

D
ir

ec
to

r,
30

3
S

ta
te

S
tr

ee
t,

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y,

M
ic

hi
ga

n.

Page 39 of 84



:53
2.22285

:2
«93

Page 40 of 84



31
31

]]

F I N A N C I A L

S
TA

T
E

M
E

N
T

S

Page 41 of 84



Page 42 of 84



A
ss

et
s

C
as

h
an

d
ca

sh
eq

ui
va

le
nt

s
D

ue
fr

om
ot

he
r

go
ve

m
m

en
ts

P
re

pa
id

it
em

s
C

ap
it

al
as

se
ts

no
t

be
in

g
de

pr
ec

ia
te

d

To
ta

l
as

se
ts

L
ia

bi
li

ti
es

A
cc

ou
nt

s
pa

ya
bl

e
A

cc
ru

ed
li

ab
il

it
ie

s
U

ne
ar

ne
d

re
ve

nu
e

A
cc

ru
ed

co
m

pe
ns

at
ed

ab
se

nc
es

D
ue

in
m

or
e

th
an

on
e

ye
ar

N
et

po
si

ti
on

N
et

in
ve

st
m

en
t

in
ca

pi
ta

l
as

se
ts

R
es

tr
ic

te
d

fo
rt

ax
in

cr
em

en
t

?n
an

ce
di

st
ri

ct
s

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d
To

ta
l

ne
t

po
si

ti
on

C
IT

Y
O FT

R
A

V
E

R
S

E
C

IT
Y

D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

D E V E L O PAT
H

O
R

IT
Y

(A
C

om
po

ne
nt

U ni
tof th

e
C

it
y

ofT
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y,

M
ic

hi
ga

n)

of etP
os

it
io

n
Ju

ne
30

,
20

24

T
he

ac c o m p a n yi n g

no
te

s
ar

e
anin

te
gr

al
pa

rt
of th

es
e

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
.

-8
-

$
8,

1
13

,5
90

19
5,

76
4

24
,6

42
97

11
0

70
03

M

1.
99

7.
]

10
7,

06
4,

45
3

56
9,

25
2

G
ov

e
rn

m
e

nt
alA

c
tiv it

i
es

Page 43 of 84



w
m

o:
n

in.
8;

m
w

m
?m

m
m

? a
m

oE
>

_S
a3=

uE
=

B
>

o0

{:50
“W

P
—

ow
ls... a

3.5..
E

hm
?uotolnsh

20
m

ousing

2.0.2
E

n33
.3”

2:...
62:5—

.E
u>

2:
S

m
3E

>
=

o<
.9

E
oE

S
S

w

A
gni—

£2
i=

0
3.5:;

he
35

2:
3

=
5.—

E
oE

E
E

eU
S

>
H

E
O

~H
H

D
<

H
Z

m
O

A
E

M
—

Q
Z

B
O

H
Z

B
O

G
“E

m
u—

N
ag

:3»
.3

.30
.553.—

.02

23::
”5::an

£233..
:2

.5368
.0:

E
our—

E
U

8.392
.505»

38...

”E
S

E
«5:535

cosE
m

oE
nor—

E
v85cc

E
oE

ubE
x3

.5.“ 348
>

535
3.038%

8x8
Page;

w
B

uE
m

oE
D

non—
=

92
1.550

N
636

a
92.3

a»

25:3—
=

o_.=
£.::o

2.52.5
2.0:va

«oz
5::

852.0
E

...
3:

E
E

G
”5::

82.25%
E

u

.m
.

.m
E

quaa
305::

8250
can.

as
2m

38:
w

E
anE

S
uu

2:.

w
a?om

w
d

m

m
m

od?d

>
2.qu

«N
v?n?v

«w
as.

o~1~uo€

N
929

Page 44 of 84



3
L

n
«3

C
IT

Y
O

F
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

E
C

IT
Y

D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
A

U
T

H
O

R
I

T
Y

(A
C

om
po

ne
nt

U
ni

t
of

th
e

C
it

y
of

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y,

M
ic

hi
ga

n)
B

al
an

ce
S

he
et

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l
F

un
ds

Ju
ne

30
,

20
24

To
ta

l

er
nm

en
ta

l
F

un
ds

l6
l

8.
11

3.
59

0
- 19

5,
76

4
8,65 76

.7
39

6, 71 2464
2

12
27

19
7

$ 8 7l
0

73
5

S
E

E
S

D
ue

D
u

P
re

p
i

\

la
l

as
se

ts

bi
li

ti
es

an

bi
li

ti
es

r

ne

To
ta

l
li

ab
il

ih
F

un
d

ba
la

nc
es

N
on

sp
en

da
bl

e-

pr
ep

ai
d

e
'p

en
di

tu
re

s
R

es
tr

ic
te

d-
ta

x
in

cr
em

en
t

?n
an

ce
di

st
ri

cl
U

na
ss

ig
ne

d
To

ta
l

fu
nd

ba
la

nc
es

To
ta

l
li

ab
il

it
ie

s
an

d
fu

nd
ba

la
nc

es

A
s C

as
h

an
d

ca
sh

eq
ui

va
le

nt
s

fr
om

ot
he

r
go

ve
rn

m
en

t

e
fr

om
ot

he
r

fu
nd

s
a

d
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es

T
n L
ia

d
fu

nd
ba

la
nc

es

A
cc

ue
d

In
ab

il
it

ie
U

am
ed

re
ve

nu
e

e
0

ot
he

r
fu

nd
‘e

s

T
IF

9 7
O

ld
To

w
n

T
IF

G
ov

G
en

er
al

F
un

d
F

un
d

F
un

d

81
1.

76
3

$
6, 10

9.
66

6

$ 1,
19

2.
$

17
8,

46
2

10
1,

41
7

24 7, 05 7

7 2
3.

21
5

6 5 67

9
57

3
63

8
86

8
1

$

T
he

ac
c

om pa
n

yi
n

g

no
te

s
ar

e
an in

te
gr

al
pa

rt
ofth

es
e

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
.

.1
0.

49
0.

68
0

58
,8

93
I2

2,
5

ll

l
04

8,
82

3

')
64

"
7,

06
4.

45
3

57
2

81
7

7,
66

1.
91

2
8‘

71
0

73
5

62
.0

99
5

58
.8

93
12

2.
5]

1
27

5.
32

2
51

8,
82

5

3,
21

5

57
2.

81
7

l.0
94

85
7

6
28

6.
32

5

6.
38

8
68 ]

$

79
9,

55
5

12
27

19
7

$

14
.

65
6

62
71

,
66

9

24
.7

13
6, 77

1
79

2,
78

4
40

2.
92

9
$

25
,

65
2

Page 45 of 84



S
E

E
M

I... .558:
.oz

3%
332383

voices
.

6:on

.35.»
05

E
notch—

2 8:
0.5

a
26

8:
Pa

m
am

a—
B

a:
£530

333
538

.
22

.m
uaé

2:
E

carom
».—

E
o>

ow
E

com
: 30m

m
“5:30

6333
E

thE
Pa

.5253
w

e:«o
.5253;

05
E

3:52.»:
N

uiw
?im

gm
5m

E
ton—

2$=
=

oE
<

N
an—

o3.
m

22:...
E

E
E

E
Q

E
M

.38
.

32.23
.25."—

Illlllllllllllllll.

V
N

Q
N6n

25—
.

E
w

en
«oz

.8
32:03am

$305533»
w

estack
32

8
m

an—
i

2.33m
2:

no
m

anna—
amE

E
K

no
noz?zouooom

95:.
3

E
u

3::
:5

332.55
3

Z
m

—
E

m
O

A
g?n—

Z
B

O
H

Z
B

O
D

E
m

u—
E

V
E

R
E

m
m

y

no

2:
.5

m
oE

>
=

o<
3:2:5259

3.—
325

o

E
H

53
56

an.

>
H

E
O

IH
D

<
H

>
50

.F
F.

.m
E

oE
B

S
m

39:56
82:

w
e «an

.E
M

S
E 5

2m
88:

m
ca?n—

E
oug

2:.

8:
Pa

2822:
E

a
32:08..

8:
Pa

28955
can cocoaEat—

S
05

E
299m

g
6:

m
ohdm

o?
m

335

2:26“
.555

M
ao:

213m
;

Page 46 of 84



79
0.

2

C
IT

Y
O

F
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

E
C

IT
Y

D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
(A

C
om

po
ne

nt
U

ni
t

of
th

e
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y,
M

ic
hi

ga
n)

S
ta

te
m

en
t

of
R

ev
en

ue
s,

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
an

d
C

ha
ng

es
in

F
un

d
B

al
an

ce
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

F
un

ds
Fo

r
th

e
Y

ea
r

E
nd

ed
Ju

ne
30

,
20

24

To
ta

l
T

lF
9

O
ld

To
w

n
T

lF
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

G
en

er
al

F
un

d
_F

u_
nd

M
F

un
ds

R
ev

en
ue

s

Ta
xe

s
$

13
1.

42
2

$
3,

83
,1

36
78

9,
98

4
$

4,
75

3,
54

2
G

ra
nt

s
an

d
co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
s

18
9.

56
7

-
18

9.
56

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
ts

1.
66

7.
31

3
92

,2
0

1,
75

9.
5

l
O

th
er

in
co

m
e

-
70

-
70

in
te

re
st

in
co

m
e

4.
88

2
54

.7
55

29
0

59
.

92
7

To
ta

l
re

ve
nu

es
1,

99
3.

18
4

3.
97

9.
79

4
74

76
3

25 -

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
co

no
m

ic
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
al

ar
ie

s
38

,4
46

93
8,

44
6

ri
ng

e
be

ne
?t

s
32

7.
81

3
-

-
32

7.
81

O
f?

ce
su

pp
li

es
an

d
ut

il
it

ie
s

35
.1

25
4,

57
4

16
9.

69
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

er
vi

ce
s

56
2.

10
4

.
8.

78
5

14
8.

32
1

T
ra

ve
l

an
d

co
nf

er
en

ce
s

14
.4

51
-

14
.

45
1

R
ep

ai
rs

an
d

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

23
4

-
7

R
en

ta
ls

44
6

44
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

to
di

st
ri

ct
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
pr

ej
ec

ts
-

83
0.

74
6

1.
68

1.
57

1
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

to
ot

he
r

go
ve

rn
m

en
ts

-
de

bt
se

rv
ic

e
-

95
3.

1
11

95
3,

1

To
ta

l
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es
1.

87
8.

61
9

3.
23

7
21

6
1.

34
,

09
2

N
et

ch
an

ge
in

fu
nd

ba
la

nc
e

11
4.

56
5

74
2.

57
8

52
9.

16
0

F
un

d
ba

la
nc

e,
be

gi
nn

in
g

of
ye

ar
46

1.
46

7
5.

54
3.

74
7

7.
13

2. 75
"1

F
un

d
ba

la
nc

e.
en

d
of

ye
ar

$
57

6.
03

2
$

6.
28

6.
32

5
$

7,
66

1
9 1

T
he

ac
c

om pa ny
i

ng

no
te

s
ar

e
anin

te
gr

al
pa

rt
ofth

es
e

?n
an

ci
al

S
ta

te
m

em
s.

.1
2.

U
B

U
B

U
B

B
U

11
8.

25
7

(3
27

.9
83

)

79
9.

55
5

$

85
0.

82
5

26
7.

43
2

Page 47 of 84



55525“
E

.8333
«a:

E
w

ag—
5

m
ean—

=
8E

385%
.

R
E

22:
w

as 82:82
335::

05
E

vow
—

one
m

om
zunxu

oE
ow

0:32
3:258

.
.3690

>
25

93
E

a
32.830

H
8»

:0
3282

38m
m

E
otaozoz

“om
—

=
83EthE

2m

$3328
.3

«S
u?sm

95
E

359:9:
~E

§E
5w

>
ow

“a
notch»...355E

<

oogw
m

a
m

a?a
E

E
E

E
E

E
»

.33
-

32.5.5
1:...—

5
m

ow
—

=
39

“oz

Illllllllllli

«S
N

.3.
2:...

can;
a;

2:
.5.

8:333
3

2.2.5.8
E

ra
_S

=
uE

E
a>

oU
no

m
oons—

amcash
E

m
ow

—
:30

.5ng
.3339:

.3
25:53am

2:
.8

553.358”—

.E
U

09.26:.
.3

b5
2:

.3
E

5
E

onom
E

oU3
H

D
<

H
Z

m
—

E
Q

O
A

m
—

N
?m

n—
Z

B
O

H
Z

B
O

Q
E

H
D

m
um

m
géh

8:53.“
E

w
O

O
E

O
m

Q
N

G
uam

.m
cza2:

E
352235

m
uv8.53.

.0:
B

a
B

a
E

250
.8

3:
2:

2:52
8:

cc
3:358

m
o E

ns—
25m

S
noE

E
oE

w
$50

E
at

26
835330..

.E
u?w

so— :o
u

.m
uaa2:

E
035:“

E
259

use
8

035:“;
6:

2m
35:533.

E
S

»
05

.m
T

.m
E

oE
B

E
W

305::
32:

w
e ran

E
M

S
—

a :a
2m

36:

2:
8

3
w

as855%

E
E

?E
.

5.3..
m

€8.va

Page 48 of 84



,J
g?

m
?u

n?
?

C
IT

Y
O

F
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

E
C

IT
Y

D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
(A

C
om

po
ne

nt
U

ni
t

of
th

e
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y,
M

ic
hi

ga
n)

N
ot

es
to

F
in

an
ci

al
S

ta
te

m
en

ts
Fo

r
th

e
Y

ea
r

E
nd

ed
Ju

ne
30

, 2
02

4

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

P
O

L
IC

IE
S

R
ep

or
ti

ng
E

nt
it

y
-

T
he

D
ow

nt
ow

n
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
(t

he
"A

ut
ho

ri
ty

")
,

a
di

sc
re

te
co

m
po

ne
nt

un
it

of
th

e
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y
(t

he
"C

it
y"

),
w

as
cr

ea
te

d
in

S
ep

te
m

be
r

19
78

by
th

e
C

it
y

C
om

m
is

si
on

pu
rs

ua
nt

to
A

ct
N

o.
19

7
of

th
e

P
ub

li
c

A
ct

s
of

19
75

of
th

e
S

ta
te

of
M

ic
hi

ga
n.

It
op

er
at

es
th

ro
ug

h
a

B
oa

rd
of

T
ru

st
ee

s
(t

he
"B

oa
rd

")
co

ns
is

ti
ng

of
th

e
M

ay
or

of
th

e
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y
an

d
el

ev
en

m
em

be
rs

ap
pr

ov
ed

by
th

e
C

it
y

C
om

m
is

si
on

. T
he

pu
rp

os
e

of
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

is
to

co
rr

ec
t

an
d

pr
ev

en
t

de
te

ri
or

at
io

n
of

th
e

D
ow

nt
ow

n
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

D
is

tr
ic

t,
en

co
ur

ag
e

hi
st

or
ic

pr
es

er
va

ti
on

,
cr

ea
te

an
d

im
pl

em
en

t
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
pl

an
s,

an
d

pr
om

ot
e

ec
on

om
ic

gr
ow

th
.

T
he

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
is

a
co

m
po

ne
nt

un
it

of
th

e
C

it
y

be
ca

us
e

th
e

C
it

y
ap

po
in

ts
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

’s
B

oa
rd

of
D

ir
ec

to
rs

,i
t

ha
s

th
e

ab
il

it
y

to
si

gn
i?

ca
nt

ly
in

?u
en

ce
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

’s
op

er
at

io
ns

an
d

it
is

?n
an

ci
al

ly
ac

co
un

ta
bl

e
fo

r
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

as
de

?n
ed

un
de

r
G

A
S

B
S

ta
te

m
en

t N
o.

14
,T

he
F

in
an

ci
al

R
ep

or
ti

ng
E

nt
it

y,
as

am
en

de
d

by
G

A
S

B
S

ta
te

m
en

ts
N

o.
39

an
d

N
o.

61
.

A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

,
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

is
pr

es
en

te
d

as
a

di
sc

re
te

ly
pr

es
en

te
d

co
m

po
ne

nt
un

it
in

th
e

C
it

y’
s

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
.

G
ov

er
nm

en
t—

w
id

e
an

d
F

un
d

F
in

an
ci

al
S

ta
te

m
en

ts
T

he
go

ve
m

m
en

t-
w

id
e

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
(i

.e
..

th
e

st
at

em
en

t
of

ne
t

po
si

ti
on

an
d

th
e

st
at

em
en

t
of

ac
tiv

it
ie

s)
re

po
rt

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

on
al

l
of

th
e

no
n?

du
ci

ar
y

ac
tiv

it
ie

s
of

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
.

Fo
r

th
e

m
os

t
pa

rt
,

th
e

ef
fe

ct
of

in
te

rf
un

d
ac

tiv
it

y
ha

s
be

en
re

m
ov

ed
fr

om
th

es
e

st
at

em
en

ts
.

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
it

ie
s.w

hi
ch

no
rm

al
ly

ar
e

su
pp

or
te

d
by

ta
xe

s
an

d
in

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

re
ve

nu
es

,
ar

e
re

po
rt

ed
se

pa
ra

te
ly

fr
om

bu
si

ne
ss

-t
yp

e
ac

tiv
it

ie
s,

w
hi

ch
re

ly
to

a
si

gn
i?

ca
nt

ex
te

nt
on

fe
es

an
d

ch
ar

ge
s

fo
r

se
rv

ic
es

.
T

he
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

ha
s

no
bu

si
ne

ss
-t

yp
e a

ct
iv

it
ie

s.

T
he

st
at

em
en

t
of

ac
tiv

it
ie

s
de

m
on

st
ra

te
s t

he
de

gr
ee

to
w

hi
ch

th
e

di
re

ct
ex

pe
ns

es
of

a
gi

ve
n

fu
nc

ti
on

or
se

gm
en

ts
ar

e
of

fs
et

by
pr

og
ra

m
re

ve
nu

es
.

D
ir

ec
t

ex
pe

ns
es

ar
e

th
os

e
th

at
ar

e

pr
iv

il
eg

es
pr

ov
id

ed
by

a
gi

ve
n

fu
nc

ti
on

or
se

gm
en

t
an

d
2)

gr
an

ts
an

d
co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
sth

at
ar

e
re

st
ri

ct
ed

to
m

ee
ti

ng
th

e
op

er
at

io
na

l
or

ca
pi

ta
l

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

of
a

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
fu

nc
ti

on
or

se
gm

en
t.

Ta
xe

s
an

d
ot

he
r

it
em

s
no

t
pr

op
er

ly
in

cl
ud

ed
am

on
g

pr
og

ra
m

re
ve

nu
es

ar
e

re
po

rt
ed

in
st

ea
d

as
ge

ne
ra

l
re

ve
nu

es
.

S
ep

ar
at

e
fu

nd
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

ar
e

pr
ov

id
ed

fo
r

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l
fu

nd
s.

M
aj

or
in

di
vi

du
al

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l
fu

nd
s

ar
e

re
po

rt
ed

as
se

pa
ra

te
co

lu
m

ns
in

th
e

fu
nd

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
.

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t
Fo

cu
s,

B
as

is
of

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g

an
d

F
in

an
ci

al
S

ta
te

m
en

t
P

re
se

nt
at

io
n

—

T
he

go
ve

m
m

en
t-

w
id

e
?n

an
ci

al
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
is

re
po

rt
ed

us
in

g
th

e
ec

on
om

ic
re

so
ur

ce
s

m
ea

sz
u'

em
en

tf
oc

usan
d

th
e

ac
cr

ua
l

ba
si

s
of

ac
co

un
ti

ng
.

R
ev

en
ue

s
ar

e
re

co
rd

ed
w

he
n

ea
rn

ed
an

d
ex

pe
ns

es
ar

e
re

co
rd

ed
w

he
n

a
li

ab
il

it
y

is
in

cu
rr

ed
,r

eg
ar

dl
es

s
of

th
e

ti
m

in
g

of
re

la
te

d
ca

sh
?o

w
s.

P
ro

pe
rt

y
ta

xe
s

ar
e

re
co

gn
iz

ed
as

re
ve

nu
es

in
th

e
ye

ar
s

fo
r

w
hi

ch
th

ey
ar

e
le

vi
ed

.
-1

4.

Page 49 of 84



.m
F.

58:88
:0

832::
585.5:

80:8
:0:

50:
b:o:§<

0:.
5:550

.55
5::

9:55.:
58:88

:0
30:8

5
m

m55538
e:

«0:
E

B
8

:5
:05:

83::
a

8
m

o:::a3::
8:23

9:55:80:
5:

:0
5:85:08

5
3:88:08

E
853

82538
395::

085:8
85:

50.588
:o

826::
5880:

:0:
5:08

8838
a

80:8
58588

E
B

035::5
5:5

5:80:
5:

:0
858898

0::
h525::

9
5:65

3

58:88
:0

8:50:30
585:0:

80:8
:0:

50:
5:053:

8:
5:550

.55
5::

83:50:06
85:08

58:88
:0

30:30
5

m
m

585008
e:

8:
:3»

8
:5

:05:
8:8:

m
3

5::5
35

851.:
5:55:80:

5:
:0

5:888:00
a

8:88:08
8855

808838
305::

88.38
W

E
E

58:88
:0

8:50:30
5:80:

:0:
5:08

085:8
a

80:8
5:85:88

E
B

ding—
:5

5:3
A

59:8005:3
8:5:

:S
:oE

E
o>

om05
:5

5:80:
5:

:0
H

5558
0::

.858:
8

53:5
5

5.838.»;
R

:
m

igK
=

§u§£b=
0

:ukm
\u§

.388:
5:5

8:06
05

m
m580:8

55
05.

S
R

E
E

ooom “:5
0828

S
E

:32:
Pa

5::
5:3

5:0
2:

:0
35:8:

0::
2:08:

388:
3:98

:05
888.8:

55.8
0::

005::
8

:08:
S

o:
8:

5:8
8

533—
5

0:
5::

3:053:
2:

550::
5>

o

£85
3:98

8:35:83“.
05

m
m5:508

:0:
8m

3:053:
05

a:58:88:00
8:58:38

553833
:5

555
5:5

M
E

S
:A

25:
5:88

:5
8038

8:08
80.33038

“8:50
852::

“8:5.— $8
$88:

ogogm
aé?

8:85:30
E

w
e:820:

:
:8:3

8:
5:058:

0::
h:

55:05:
:5_

:0
8.08::

03:
E

V
E

—
S

E
5 m

a:bio?aa
B

E
L

:5an
58.369

.b_:0:u:<
“58:22:5—

E
soE

B
oD

2:
:0

9058:
058:8

E
S

E
»

5:35:
5.:

55.588
gam

e:
8:

5::
50.588

305::
:0:

«508:
91:23::2:55:

383w
.R

R
5.3.:

30
:2:

3
R

E
0:9

:5:
5:85

5
:0:

5:508:
o:

8
5:58

805
.505

5553:
5::

:0
58:88

555::
:a

.8:
$508:

:
:5:

m
:::5:0

bm
?u:

85:80:81:
0::

m
:.S

S
K

3.55%
E

H

8:5:
E

5535
80:2:536:0:

u?
38:8

5:80:85
o:H

45535
05

x:5388
m

::50
5:3

:5
25:9:

:5
038858

a:
0:

553850
8:

£5:
0:55:

5:8
:<

:05:
R

8:
2550

8:
:0

5:55.—
5

55588
:3:

3m
:

:5
3:50:

3
3::588

o:
3

5:028:00
:a

P
E

:05:
R

8:
«550

05
5:5

58:88:
888::

:5
50:3

35:8:
0::

m
: «5E

3:
5:3

3:0
5:508

8:
8836555

88:85
5:85:88

:5
8:38

S
o:

5530::
.w

::::08m
388:

5:::
m

ah58.50::8: 5:55:
a

5:3
5:508

8a
382%

5:355:5—
.:05:

:8:
E

850
8:

:0
:5

2:
:0

an:
o:

5:35
580:8

Pa
5::

:
2:256

o:
2

5:55:
892850

b.5?:<
0::

“80:5:
8::

80:
:05:

8555
05

:0
88::5:

.3:
8

5:555
:w

:05
:08

.5
:05:

“5:5
05

85:5
2:85:00

8:
5::

5:3
35:98

0:
8

55:85".
8:

5:55:
25:5:

:5
2:88:08

:8:
8d

5::
m

m:08
3

585008
8:

5:55:
.m

=
:§00uc

\o
:3:

33.8:
5:35.:

8:
:5

S
E

Q
32:85.55

58:88
3.858%

.3925
8:

55:
580:8

8:5550.8:
305::

:5:
55:85:00

vueu6m
3::

5::
50>

0:.
.5:

355035
3855:

3
53

Z

5:59:
56

23:;
a.:6

2.29
:5

55:55
3

58053
5:550:55

2387590:
5.0

5:825
:0

>
80

Page 50 of 84



L
_l

l‘
__

lL
_.

J"
.1

5.

C
IT

Y
O

F
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

E
C

IT
Y

D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
(A

C
om

po
ne

nt
U

ni
t

of
th

e
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y,
M

ic
hi

ga
n)

N
ot

es
to

F
in

an
ci

al
S

ta
te

m
en

ts
Fo

r
th

e
Y

ea
r

E
nd

ed
Ju

ne
30

,
20

24

A
cc

ru
ed

co
m

pe
ns

at
ed

ab
se

nc
es

-
E

m
pl

oy
ee

s
ea

rn
Pa

id
T

im
e

O
ff

,
if

Pa
id

T
im

e
O

ff
is

no
t

us
ed

be
fo

re
th

e
an

ni
ve

rs
ar

y
da

te
,

a
m

ax
im

um
of

40
ho

ur
s

ar
e

el
ig

ib
le

fo
r

ro
ll

ov
er

in
to

th
e

ne
xt

w
or

k
ye

ar
an

d
ac

cu
m

ul
at

io
n

in
th

e
P

T
O

“b
uc

ke
t.”

U
nu

se
d

P
T

O
ab

ov
e

40
ho

ur
s

th
at

re
m

ai
ns

on
th

e
an

ni
ve

rs
ar

y
da

te
w

il
l

be
fo

rf
ei

te
d.

T
he

m
ax

im
um

pa
yo

ut
up

on
se

pa
ra

ti
on

w
il

l
be

40
ho

ur
s.

T
he

es
ti

m
at

ed
am

ou
nt

du
e

to
em

pl
oy

ee
s

as
of

Ju
ne

30
,

20
24

is
ac

cr
ue

d
in

th
e

go
ve

rn
m

en
t-

w
id

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

.

F
un

d
B

al
an

ce
—

In
th

e
fu

nd
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

,
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l

fu
nd

s
re

po
rt

no
ns

pe
nd

ab
le

fu
nd

ba
la

nc
e

fo
r

am
ou

nt
s

th
at

ca
nn

ot
be

sp
en

t
be

ca
us

e
th

ey
ar

e
ei

th
er

(a
)

no
t

in
sp

en
da

bl
e

fo
rm

or
(b

)
le

ga
ll

y
or

co
nt

ra
ct

ua
ll

y
re

qu
ir

ed
to

be
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d
in

ta
ct

.
R

es
tr

ic
te

d
fu

nd
ba

la
nc

e
is

re
po

rt
ed

w
he

n
ex

te
rn

al
ly

im
po

se
d

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s

ar
e

pl
ac

ed
on

th
e

us
e

of
th

e
re

so
ur

ce
by

gr
an

to
rs

,
co

nt
ri

bu
to

rs
,o

r
la

w
s

or
re

gu
la

ti
on

s
of

ot
he

r
go

ve
rn

m
en

ts
.

C
om

m
it

te
d

fu
nd

ba
la

nc
e

is
re

po
rt

ed
fo

r
am

ou
nt

s
th

at
ca

n
be

us
ed

fo
r

sp
ec

i?
c

pu
rp

os
es

pu
rs

ua
nt

to
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s i
m

po
se

d
by

fo
rm

al
ac

ti
on

of
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

’s
hi

gh
es

t
le

ve
l

of
de

ci
si

on
m

ak
in

g
au

th
or

it
y,

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
’s

B
oa

rd
of

D
ir

ec
to

rs
.

A
fo

m
ia

l
re

so
lu

ti
on

by
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

’s
B

oa
rd

of
D

ir
ec

to
rs

is
re

qu
ir

ed
to

es
ta

bl
is

h,
m

od
if

y
or

re
sc

in
d

a
fu

nd
ba

la
nc

e
co

m
m

it
m

en
t.

A
ss

ig
ne

d
fu

nd
ba

la
nc

e
is

re
po

rt
ed

fo
r

am
ou

nt
s

in
te

nd
ed

fo
r

sp
ec

i?
c

pu
rp

os
es

ex
pr

es
se

d
an

d
as

si
gn

ed
by

th
e

go
ve

rn
in

g
bo

dy
.

U
na

ss
ig

ne
d

fu
nd

ba
la

nc
e

is
th

e
re

si
du

al
cl

as
si

?c
at

io
n

fo
r

th
e

G
en

er
al

F
un

d.

N
et

P
os

it
io

n
an

d
F

un
d

B
al

an
ce

F
lo

w
A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
S

om
et

im
es

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
w

il
l

fu
nd

ou
tl

ay
s

fo
r

a
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

pu
rp

os
e

fr
om

bo
th

re
st

ri
ct

ed
(e

.g
.,

re
st

ri
ct

ed
bo

nd
or

gr
an

t
pr

oc
ee

ds
)

an
d

un
re

st
ri

ct
ed

re
so

ur
ce

s.
In

or
de

r
to

ca
lc

ul
at

e
th

e
am

ou
nt

s
to

re
po

rt
as

re
st

ri
ct

ed
ne

t
po

si
ti

on
/f

un
d

ba
la

nc
e

an
d

un
re

st
ri

ct
ed

ne
t

po
it

io
fu

nd
ba

la
nc

e,
a

?o
w

as
su

m
pt

io
n

m
us

t
be

m
ad

e
ab

ou
t

th
e

or
de

r
in

w
hi

ch
th

e
re

so
ur

ce
s

ar
e

co
ns

id
er

ed
to

be
ap

pl
ie

d.
It

is
th

e
go

ve
m

m
en

t’
s

po
li

cy
to

us
e

re
st

ri
ct

ed
re

so
ur

ce
s

?r
st

,
th

en
un

re
st

ri
ct

ed
re

so
ur

ce
as

th
ey

ar
e

ne
ed

ed
. F

ur
th

er
,w

he
n

th
e

co
m

po
ne

nt
s

of
un

re
st

ri
ct

ed
fu

nd
ba

la
nc

e
ca

n
be

us
ed

fo
r

th
e

sa
m

e
pu

rp
os

e.
co

m
m

it
te

d
fu

nd
ba

la
nc

e
is

de
pl

et
ed

?r
st

,
fo

ll
ow

ed
by

as
si

gn
ed

fu
nd

ba
la

nc
e.

U
na

ss
ig

ne
d

fu
nd

ba
la

nc
e

is
ap

pl
ie

d
la

st
.

M
ic

hi
ga

n
C

om
pi

le
d

L
aw

s,
S

ec
ti

on
12

9.
91

au
th

or
iz

e
th

e
lo

ca
l

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l
un

it
to

m
ak

e
de

po
si

ts
an

d
in

ve
st

in
th

e
ac

co
un

ts
of

fe
de

ra
ll

y
in

su
re

d
ba

nk
s,

cr
ed

it
un

io
ns

,a
nd

sa
vi

ng
s

an
d

lo
an

as
so

ci
at

io
ns

w
hi

ch
ha

ve
an

of
?c

e
in

M
ic

hi
ga

n.
T

he
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

is
al

lo
w

ed
to

in
ve

st
in

bo
nd

s.
se

cu
ri

ti
es

,
an

d
ot

he
r

di
re

ct
ob

li
ga

ti
on

s
of

th
e

U
ni

te
d

S
ta

te
s

or
an

y
ag

en
cy

or
in

st
ru

m
en

ta
li

ty
of

th
e

U
ni

te
d

S
ta

te
s;

ni
te

d
S

ta
te

s
go

ve
rn

m
en

t
or

fe
de

ra
l

ag
en

cy
ob

li
ga

ti
on

s;
re

pu
rc

ha
se

ag
re

em
en

ts
:

ba
nk

er
s’

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
of

ni
te

d
S

ta
te

s
ba

nk
s;

co
m

m
er

ci
al

pa
pe

r
ra

te
d

w
it

hi
n

th
e

tw
o

hi
gh

es
t

cl
as

si
?c

at
io

ns
w

hi
ch

m
at

ur
e

no
t

m
or

e
th

an
27

0
da

ys
af

te
r

th
e

da
te

of
pu

rc
ha

se
:o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
of

th
e

S
ta

te
of

M
ic

hi
ga

n
or

it
s

po
li

ti
ca

l
su

bd
iv

is
io

ns
w

hi
ch

ar
e

ra
te

d
as

in
ve

st
m

en
t

gr
ad

e:
an

d
m

ut
ua

l
fu

nd
s

co
m

po
ed

of
in

ve
st

m
en

t
ve

hi
cl

es
w

hi
ch

ar
e

le
ga

l
fo

r
di

re
ct

in
ve

st
m

en
t

by
lo

ca
lu

ni
ts

of
go

ve
rn

m
en

t
in

M
ic

hi
ga

n.

Page 51 of 84



233;
a

.
w

.
a

233;
a

2.3
”w

ougooaov8:
39m

m
“3&

0

8.3—
:—

88953
$322:

35.5
”E

cum
—

”55:3:

gas—
um230

35
2:

8»
855::

canw
ow

m
noha

25
3

E
28

88m
m

E
m

a—
«O

w
ham

m
a‘153::

U
.m

4:053m
e

:o?bm
g?um

M
E

S
E

Q
w

n?am
B

an
2.:

2
E

E
E

E
ngage»

basin
55

u?
S

od
835/302

:8
om

hw
om82:2:

m
uqo??gom

B
?o

E
at

26
355:8

E
S

L
.8280

one

w
F

Z
H

S
Z

y—
E

row
yum

—
E

H
O

?O
m

E
D

A
..—

.v

.m
ou?am

n
€38

388a
m

o
E

m
cee

8:338
an??gow

05
E

m
am

a—
E

a: cop—
8"

.?oom
oa

cow
ogm

aoo
«uric

“E
L

E
sp—

l
20

S
M

E
oE

E
o>

ow
E

E
E

Q
E

U
05

8
26

coonw
am

m
bo??m

xoam
mmE

nE
oE£8.83

2283.598
98

?ow
s?

9
@

332
can

03ng
w

E
dooo<

m
?—

H
—

A
—

m
gaqQ

H
D

K
U

U
<

Q
Z

<
H

dm
<

>
<

m
$5,500an

.m

dong—
“53:8

8:
w

as3528:
m

m w
ow

nm
cw

ng
m

o52.582
2:

E
s

ooonom
w

m
35%

:
sea?o?oo

8:335
:m

om
on

E
aton

2F
doom

?1%
an055E

E
m

um
m

onou
m

o .8
“3320

“PA
8:

:5
55.5»

930:0
w

e203588
3225

x53
05

w
e $5881.

05
E

“928%
“

295
m

ach—
on

33m
23:

gm
:

:38
36898

w
E

E
m

w
B xenon aB

io?
8:

m
a:bro?s‘m

05
23

2.5a»:
8n

m
eow88m

B
E

.3533
an

8:
b2:

S
agan

m
nbto?iw

R
t

.225
£53

am
o «:26

05
E

35
gm

:
2:

?
xm

t36830

£8
2.

-
it

E
53

32.26

.33
.om25—

. anom
m

a?M
am

iecosm
ic

5
F

E
B

m
xm

onov
?an—

m
ow

om
tn?oo 0.3

353353
:30

E
B

:30
rbto?sxx

2F
£53

a
H

E
?

363%
u??oc

w
asw

as: no
:38

0.8
353353

am
m

o28
?ne

m
bto?nlx

2?

$3563
boH

B
S

m£39
35288

E
a

5:8
E

ugw
g?

E
a

:m
oaoc

?bto?ax
oak

I’llIlIl
:8

an
2.5.

3:5.
E

.»
2:

S
m

m
eno?ou?m32:3:—

8
832

A
S

E
-E

S
.35

ova—
32H w

e>
20

2:
.3

“=
5

E
oncanU

$
E

E
O

IH
D

<
H

zm
—

E
m

O
A

E
m

—
QZB

O
P

Z
B

O
:

>
.=

D
H

w
y—

gag;
ho

>
50

Page 52 of 84



>
13

-

C
IT

Y
O

F
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

E
C

IT
Y

D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
(A

C
om

po
ne

nt
U

ni
t

of
th

e
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y,
M

ic
hi

ga
n)

N
ot

es
to

F
in

an
ci

al
S

ta
te

m
en

ts
Fo

r
th

e
Y

ea
r

E
nd

ed
Ju

ne
30

,2
02

4

A
C

C
R

U
E

D
C

O
M

P
E

N
S

A
T

E
D

A
B

S
E

N
C

E
S

C
ha

ng
es

in
ac

cr
ue

d
co

m
pe

ns
at

ed
ab

se
nc

es
co

ns
is

t
of

th
e

fo
ll

ow
in

g:
D

ue
B

al
an

ce
B

al
an

ce
W

it
hi

n
07

/0
1/

23
A

dd
it

io
ns

R
ed

uc
ti

on
s

06
/3

0/
24

O
ne

Y
ea

r

A
cc

ru
ed

co
m

pe
ns

at
ed

ab
se

nc
es

$4
1

85
6

$
36

18
1

$
49

81
0

$2
8

22
7

-

C
om

pe
ns

at
ed

ab
se

nc
es

ar
e

li
qu

id
at

ed
by

th
e

G
en

er
al

F
un

d.

C
O

M
M

IT
M

E
N

T
S

T
he

20
17

C
it

y
of

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y

D
ow

nt
ow

n
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

Ta
x

E
xe

m
pt

R
ef

un
di

ng
B

on
ds

ar
e

re
po

rt
ed

on
th

e
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

.
T

he
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

ha
s

pl
ed

ge
d

ta
x

in
cr

em
en

t
re

ve
nu

es
fo

r
th

e
pa

ym
en

t
of

th
es

e
bo

nd
s.

T
he

C
it

y
ha

s
pl

ed
ge

d
it

s
li

m
it

ed
ta

x
fu

ll
fa

it
h

an
d

cr
ed

it
fo

r
th

e
pa

ym
en

t
of

th
e

pr
in

ci
pa

l
an

d
in

te
re

st
on

th
e

bo
nd

s.
T

he
fo

ll
ow

in
g

ar
e

th
e

ob
li

ga
ti

on
s,

in
cl

ud
in

g
in

te
re

st
,

ex
pe

ct
ed

to
be

pa
id

fr
om

th
e

co
ll

ec
ti

on
of

ta
x

in
cr

em
en

t
re

ve
nu

es
in

th
e

Ta
x

In
cr

em
en

t F
in

an
ci

ng
an

d
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

P
la

n
N

o.
97

.

F
is

ca
l

Y
ea

r
E

nd
A

m
ou

nt

20
25

$
91

3.
72

0
20

26
87

4,
45

9
20

27
82

5,
65

6
20

28
78

2,
54

1

T
he

A
ut

ho
ri

t
y

h a sco
m

m
it

te
dtoas

si
st

th
e

C
it

y
w

it
h

va
ri

ou
s

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
re

la
te

d
pr

oj
ec

ts
w

it
hi

n
th

ei
r b o u n d a ri e sin

cl
ud

in
g

br
id

ge
re

pa
ir

s.
st

re
et

up
gr

ad
es

an
d

st
re

et
sc

ap
e

im
pr

ov
em

en
t

s.
T

he
es

ti
m

at
e

dA
ut

ho
ri

ty
co

m
m

it
m

en
t

fo
r

pr
oj

ec
ts

th
at

ha
ve

st
ar

te
d

is
$4

53
,3

59
at

J 3
0.

20
24

.
T

he
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

w
il

l
pa

y
th

e
e co

m
m

it
m

en
ts

us
in

g
di

st
ri

ct
el

ig
ib

le
T

IF
ca

pt
ur

ed

B
B

B

Page 53 of 84



nm
w

n

.850ch
00

0588
00:3

33
80.0000

00
80

«08
.00

250
0.5

080
0820

20,0
.80

00:05
00

00.0 000300w
0.0300036

0000>
00H

000
0m

00000000
0000000:3

30050.40000
0033

00
300

0000>
000l00

300
000

0003
m

eow“00002.
00

00000000
0

0000
0000000 3.00002000H

.0805
00

00.0 000000
00

0000000000000 000
00

00030000300000000000 000
00000

000.000 0003000300000000
00H

.A
000000000w

00
0.0000000

-000
0V00000000040 35

00003000.03000305
000503

000.0000
0

00000000000 300000040
00H

H
D

Z
H

R
H

M
m

H
U

E
M

m
—

m H>
~H

<
¢H

m
~7=

2n<

.ooanm
vm

dg
003

0;
0300.

000
00000303

030080 00000000
vm

ém
om

000%
.0000

000.
000.0000 03.00000 3000.000000 000 3..—

000000000000 000000000
00000

00
00>

0003
000..A

m
w

m
ém

v?vm
v

0F
0300‘

05
000

S
ow

003

0000000000
00000000

.00
000%

0003
000‘ 000.0300”;

003
no

0:.
000

000_0>
030000

000000000N
.38

000»
3000.0000.

00.00000 05
0000 3000.00 0000

000 3
0000000000000 000000000

00000 00
000»

000300%
$0063.98

3
“=

0. 00.0 39
03

000000000
00000.00 08>

0003
00H

.0=
_0>

0300000 000»
0003

05
0000000

033
0300000 0000000

000
0000 00008

000
00

00000000 30000000
M

06500
0000000000 0000000

0303
3000000

00
0030.

00x00
:0

00
000000000

300060.00
000 n0000033000000000000 000000 0000030000

00000 00000 0008000 00000
5000000000 0000xm

003030000
0000000

00
00300000 005

000000
000

3
0000000000

300000000 00:0
05

00
00.0

0000000000
000000000

0003000000005»
000

00
00300

0003
0003300000

0000>
00

00003000000
.300

00003000.
00

300
000

00
353000000005

00000000 080
3000000000000000000000000

.00
00:00:00

30000
00003000.0000C

3
0000030

000
000000000

000
0

00002
00

30000000000000030>
00

00
00x00000005.050300003.

05
.00r0303

00
00x00

0000000200000
0:3

35
000. 000.5000

0000000000
0000000000 000005

00
0000000003 05

0303
00000.

0000000000
00

00:
0300000000

00
00

000000000
0030—

000
0000000 3000000.0000000000

000M
.23

“on
000—

.000
0000

00000.0 000 @
000000000

000.00.00 00000000
0000 00000000050

0000000000
0000000000 0000E

H
.

030
0.

B
O

00.0. 0000000000002050 $005000
0000000000 000

05
3

00000.50003000
00 "300000300

000000000500
03000309

000
00

0000—
000 000

0033
h0.0:.000

000
0000>

00
080

3000000

0:000
N

ow
;

0.03
$.33

000000000.000.0 0000
x00w

0u00000
1.000%

0002030
200

000.000.0000 33
32

080
20

50
00203

05
30

00020
08850

000
000000.0 020>

030000
000.

.00_0>
00000000000 .00 0000000on

0000000000 00
00

808
000

30 0000—
0000
000

.30000
05

3
000000000000000.300000 .300

05
3

3300000000030000
00

00300»
0000000<

.000030000000005
.00

0
00002

E
0000 000

.00 0000000000
0000003 00000

0.0000:000
E

300
09500000000000000

3000000000003 030300
000

00000..3000000
.0000

00:
000 in

003000009 m
00000000

000.00
00

30000040 000.00 000.505
00.000

000002
3000000

03000000.00000030>
0300000000

00
0

33.
0000

00300
000

000000 30000000030000030 039

m
an.

>
H

¢H
~O

~E

vucu .em000—
.00000—

000>
0:0

00,0

0000000005 30003,.—
S

00002

3003022
.300

00003000..00 35
05

.00:03
0000000000 3

E
E

O
E

H
D

<
E

H
E

O
O

A
H

>
H

D
Z

B
C

H
Z

B
O

:
>

000
H

m
??>

§b
00

>
50

Page 54 of 84



31
13

33
31

3

C
IT

Y
O

F
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

E
C

IT
Y

W
N

T
O

W
N

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
T

A
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
on

en
t

U
ni

t
of

th
e

C
it

y
of

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y,

M
ic

hi
ga

n)

N
ot

es
to

F
in

an
ci

al
S

ta
te

m
en

ts
Fo

r
th

e
Y

ea
r

E
nd

ed
Ju

ne
30

,2
02

4

10
.

11
.

T
he

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
’

G
en

er
al

F
un

d
is

re
im

bu
r

ed
an

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

fe
e

fo
r

in
di

re
ct

tfr
om

th
e

T
IF

97
an

d
O

ld
To

w
n

T
IF

F
un

ds
as

ap
pr

ov
ed

in
th

e
bu

dg
et

.
T

he
re

ve
nu

e
r e c o r d e d

inth
e

G
en

er
al

F
un

d
an

d
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

e
in

th
e

IF
F

un
d

ar
e

el
im

in
at

ed
in

th
e

go
ve

rn
m

en
t

w
id

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
t

.
In

co
m

e
fr

om
th

e
ad

m
in

i
tr

at
iv

e
fe

e
fo

r
th

e
ye

ar
en

de
d

30
,

20
24

w
as

$6
85

,3
39

.

R
IS

K
O

F
L

O
S

S

T
he

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
is

ex
po

se
d

to
va

ri
ou

s
ri

sk
s

of
lo

ss
es

re
la

te
d

to
to

rt
s;

th
ef

t
of

,
d a

to
,

an
d

de
st

ru
ct

io
n

of
as

se
ts

;
er

ro
rs

an
d

om
is

si
on

s;
in

ju
ri

es
to

em
pl

oy
ee

s;
an

d
na

tu
ra

l
T

he
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

is
co

ve
re

d
fo

r
th

es
e

ri
sk

s
vi

a
th

e
M

ic
hi

ga
n

M
un

ic
ip

al
L

ia
bi

li
ty

an
d

P
oo

l.
M

ic
hi

ga
n

M
un

ic
ip

al
W

or
ke

rs
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n

In
su

ra
nc

e
F

un
d

an
d

co
m

m
er

c
ia

l

he
al

th
in

su
ra

nc
e.

T
he

re
ha

s
be

en
no

si
gn

i?
ca

nt
re

du
ct

io
n

in
in

su
ra

nc
e

co
ve

ra
ge

fr
om

pr
io

rye
ar

an
d

se
tt

le
m

en
ts

ha
ve

no
t

ex
ce

ed
ed

in
su

ra
nc

e
co

ve
ra

ge
fo

r
th

e
pa

st
th

re
e

?s
ca

l

D
E

F
E

R
R

E
D

C
O

M
P

E
N

S
A

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N

T
he

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
sp

on
so

rs
th

e
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y
D

ow
nt

ow
n

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
A

ut
h

or
it

y
D

ef
e

rr
ed

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n
P

la
n

cr
ea

te
d

in
ac

co
rd

an
ce

w
it

h
th

e
In

te
rn

al
R

ev
en

ue
C

od
e

S
e

ct
i

on

45
7.

T
he

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

or
of

th
e

pl
an

is
IC

M
A

R
et

ir
em

en
t

C
or

po
ra

ti
on

.
T

he
pl

an
is

a v a i l a b l etoal
l

em
pl

oy
ee

s.
T

he
em

pl
oy

er
co

nt
ri

bu
te

s
4%

to
th

e
pl

an
an

d
w

il
lm

at
ch

em
pl

oy
e

e
c

up
to

an
ad

di
ti

on
al

6°
0.

P
la

n
pr

ov
is

io
n

an
d

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

ca
n

on ly
b eam

e
nd

ed
by

a
re

so
lu

ti
on

fr
om

th
e

B
oa

rd
of

D
ir

ec
to

rs
.

In
?s

ca
l

ye
ar

20
24

th
e

A
ut

ho
r

it
y

co nt
r

ib ut
e

d

$6
9,

05
6

an
d

th
e

em
pl

oy
ee

s
co

nt
ri

bu
te

d
$5

4,
23

0
to

th
is

pl
an

.

(A
C o

Page 55 of 84



:53
2.2.2285

:2
$2.

2.5

Page 56 of 84



JW
JW

JJ
]

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D

S
U

P
P

L
E

E
N

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

Page 57 of 84



Page 58 of 84



1
7H

3
nJ

7A
.

nI
J

nl
g

—
]4

U
.z

‘.

C
IT

Y
O

F
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

E
C

IT
Y

D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
(A

C
om

po
ne

nt
U

ni
t

of
th

e
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y,
M

ic
hi

ga
n)

S
ch

ed
ul

e
of

R
ev

en
ue

s,
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

an
d

C
ha

ng
es

in
F

un
d

B
al

an
ce

B
ud

ge
t

to
A

ct
ua

l
G

en
er

al
F

un
d

Fo
r

th
e

Y
ea

r
E

nd
ed

Ju
ne

30
,

20
24

V
ar

ia
nc

e
B

ud
ge

tA
m

ou
nt

s
A

ct
ua

l
P

os
it

iv
e

O
ri

gi
na

l
m

y
A

m
ou

nt
{N

eg
at

iv
e}

R
ev

en
ue

s
Ta

xe
s

39
13

0,
00

0
8‘

13
0,

00
0

$
13

1.
42

2
$

1,
42

2
G

ra
nt

s
an

d
co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
s

10
0.

00
0

10
0.

00
0

18
9.

56
7

89
,5

67
R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

ts
1.

58
5.

35
9

15
85

.35
9

1,
66

7,
31

3
81

,9
54

R
en

ta
l

in
co

m
e

11
5,

00
0

11
5,

00
0

-
1

15
,0

00
)

In
te

re
st

in
co

m
e

1
00

0
1,

00
0

4.
88

2
3

88
2

To
ta

l
re

ve
nu

es
1.

93
1.

35
9

1.
93

1.
59

1.
99

3.
18

4
61

.8
25

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
E

co
no

m
ic

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

S
al

ar
ie

s
1,

06
0.

13
4

1.
06

0,
1

4
93

8.
44

6
12

1.
68

8
F

ri
ng

e
be

ne
?t

s
39

0.
38

2
39

0.
8.

.
32

7.
81

3
62

.5
69

O
f?

ce
su

pp
li

es
an

d
ut

il
it

ie
s

63
.0

00
63

.0
00

35
.1

25
27

.8
75

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l s
er

vi
ce

s
36

0.
00

0
36

0,
0

0
56

2.
10

4
(2

02
.1

04
)

T
ra

ve
l

an
d

co
nf

er
en

ce
s

30
.0

00
30

.0
0

14
.4

51
15

.5
49

R
ep

ai
rs

an
d

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

-
-

23
4

(2
34

)
R

en
ta

ls
-

.
44

6
(4

46
)

C
ap

it
al

ou
tl

ay
-

-
—

-

To
ta

l
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es
1.

90
3.

51
6

1.
90

3.
51

6
1.

87
8.

61
9

24
,8

97

N
et

ch
an

ge
in

fu
nd

ba
la

nc
e

-
re

ve
nu

es
ov

er
(u

nd
er

)
e\

pe
nd

it
ur

es
27

.8
43

27
.8

43
11

4,
56

5
86

.7
22

F
un

d
ba

la
nc

e,
be

gi
nn

in
g

of
ye

ar
46

1.
46

7
46

1
46

7
46

1.
46

7

F
un

d
ba

la
nc

e,
en

d
of

ye
ar

U
D

B
U

U
U

Q

Page 59 of 84



rune“.
A

.

'o
a

1h
s‘

om
u?w

ov;
a

m
m

m
dw

m
e w

33K
“:

a
m

o?w
nw

nvm
L

ucas—
E

96353;
B

E
...—

.
S

ugam
$5.33

E
nm

vm
hm

.51
S

“5:59:
62.5.3

E
...“—

ow
m

doe;
inn:

N
vohm

co
$930

236530
69.3

5>
o

8:55;
.

8:23
9::

E
um

c?o $2

and:
_

232$
89:

.
£3

3.5:..539
.5:

.
.

>
250

3:30
3m

:1an
9%

.
03.

a
u

:5
#

on .?:oE
E

o>
ow

.550
2

22521500
«3&

5
838

S
o“ _

o
. _.

86a
532.28

S
E

Q
“

S
E

oust?ou
”R

am
a

an.» _3
$33.

33$;
32:8

3838.65
outm

m
—

:32
8°53

coed?
425::

E
a

m
oznaa

8E
0

E
uE

a20>
ou ego—

50m
—

m
ohagu?axm

—

A
535

and»?
53m

?
33m

?
82.2.2

3:;

E
w

an
33m

83
83

0585
“8.2.:

con
con

.
.

oE
ooE

5:3
A

R
E

N
M

V
m

a?m
a

godm
—

ooodm
—

?cquE
B

E
W

M

885$
.

25.3
25.8

223958
93

£520
agave

m
02.33.”

a
$62...

a
.8524

m
35¢

non-E
Q

E
M

—

3
:52:

.2;
m

a?a
03:2:—

__=
.5u<

3::eE
<

gum
—

=
5

82:23

V
N

Q
N .om05:.

toe—
.m

—23>
05

nor.—
3

E
H

.
-

2::—
o=

=
o>

o¢
1:09am

.55“:
2

now
—

:5
3.5:“:

6...:—
E

now
—

5:03.:
m

ou=
=

cgu3xm
62:55”—

uo
23.2.5

A
nny—

.22
56

o?w
>

?h
no36

a....3
:5.

2.2.2255
S

>
H

E
O

E
D

<
H

Z
E

A
O

A
H

>
H

D
Z

3O
H

Z
B

O
G

H
§H

>
§H

m
3

3
“N

Page 60 of 84



I_
_l

a;

B
ud

g
etA

m
ou

nt
s

F
in

al
R

ev
en

ue
s

Ta
xe

s
84

1,
48

1
$84

1.
48

]

In
te

re
st

in
co

m
e

10
0

10
0

To
ta

l
re

ve
nu

es
84

1
58

1
84

1
58

1

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
E

co
no

m
ic

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l
se

rv
ic

es
30

3.
45

0
30

3.
45

0
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

to
di

st
ri

ct
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
pr

oi
e

ts
80

5.
00

0
1,

38
8

44
5

To
ta

l
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es
1. 10 8. 45 01.

69
1

89
5

N
et

ch
an

ge
in

fu
nd

ba
la

nc
e

-
re

ve
nu

es
ov

er
(u

nd
er

)
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es
(2

66
.8

69
)(8

50
.3

14
)

F
un

d
ba

la
nc

e,
be

gi
nn

in
g

of
ye

ar
1. 12 7. 53 81.

12
7

53
8

F
un

d
ba

la
nc

e,
en

d
of

ye
ar

86
0,

66
9

S 27
7,

22
4

$ $A
ct

ua
l

M
M

78
9,

98
4

$ 29
0

79
0

27
4

26
7.

43
2

35
0

82
5

1.
11

8.
25

7

(3
27

.9
83

)

112
7,

53
8

79
9.

55
5

$V
ar

ia
n

P
os

it
i

{N
eg

at
i

e) (5
1,

(5
1,

3

36
.0

18
"3

7,
62

0

‘7
3.

63
8

22
.3

31

52
2.

33
1

C
IT

Y
O FT

R
A

V
E

R
S

E

IT
D

O
W

N
T

O
W

N
TAT

H
O

R
IT

Y
(A

C
om

po
ne

nt
U

n
it

o fth
e

C
it

y
of T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y,
M

ic
hi

ga
n)

S
ch

ed
ul

e
of

R
ev

en
ue

s,
an

d
C

ha
ng

es
inFu

nd
B

al
an

ce
B

u
dg ettoA

ct
ua

l
S

pe
ci

al
F

un
d

- O
ld

To
w

n
T

IF
Fo

r
t h e

Y
e

arE
nd

ed
Ju

ne
3020

24

ce ve 49
7)

I9
0

07

D
E

E
D

Page 61 of 84



M
y.

24-

.m
nosm

tnoam
a

uoooxo>=
am

2 8:
~38

m
ouB

m
cqom

xo
:38:

E
_u>

£
05

m
m:28:

40>
“:use

0%
?

E
gon

w
E

E
o>

om2t
.3

nam
e—

5.9528
930w

a
w

e _o>
2

E
w

o?oak
.bgtom

can
conga

65¢
3

E
E

E
F

E
Q

E
$535

E
0838

83:5
2:

.
.S

PA
05

w
E

h? :om
m

m
eE

oU
35

05
3

3223
8

@
833

333ch
m

m
0.8

8.50:3
w

oaow
w

sm
any—

305$
M

assage“
3538

33$:an
H

E
B

E
03650

£93
a

no
3303

m
mE

m
uanB

E
.

.
.E

m
om

w
buo?é

05
3

B
io?“

:2:
m

m 33:5
2;

.m
u?d

m
.bio£=

<
2:

5.“
an»

E
ow

vsn
05

m
o gam

m
a.

2:
S

S
E

E
5382

:oE
m

m
E

E
oU

35
a

@
585

B
io?

b?w
?

m
m 8ng

B
F

$30888
5393

??no
3

E
on

08
m

m
a?m

on
235m

.nom
m

E
E

E
oU

56
08

8
82:5

m
assage

uoU
G

uE
E

ooE
m

m
a?a—

5m S
w

aaéz
55

05
iguana

.25
32>

”:
H

942
gum

m
S

w
E36

2:
2

33:5
num

om
oa

m
m

pm
?nsm

biog—
“3‘

oak
.

”E
E

E
B

S
m

3235*
05

E
350:8

S
aw

E
ow

gn
05

w
a?m

zn?m
o

cm 38on
?ow

csn9m
e

05
@

5028
bier—

H
aw2F

S
ine

$88
S

am
oa

8
v8:

w
nugooomm

o£m
e

33.88
B

E
E

S
08m

m
2:

no
889on

Pa

3033
:05

w
as85:8

@
80va

.358
S

E
:

03
m

a?a
05:32

30on
B

a
355w

2F

Z
O

~H
<

§O
H

Z
~

>
¢<

H
H

U
Q

D
m

E
w

an—
he:—

E
?uo?oiaim

3::qu
3

882

A
533:

£6
8.0:;

w
e56

2:
a.

is
2.2255

S
35553

azazm
oqgm

n
238230:

56
35:5

w
e

w
ho

Page 62 of 84



1:
]a

n]

I N T E R N A L

C
O

N
T

R
O

L
A

N
D

C
O

M
P

L
IA

N
C

E

Page 63 of 84



Page 64 of 84



IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

A
U

D
IT

O
R

S
’

R
E

P
O

R
T

O
N

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
C

O
N

T
R

O
L

O
V

E
R

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
A

N
D

O
N

C
O

M
P

L
IA

N
C

E
A

N
D

O
T

H
E

R
M

A
T

T
E

R
S

B
A

S
E

D
O

N
A

N
A

U
D

IT
O

F
F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

S
TA

T
E

M
E

N
T

S
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

E
D

IN
A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E
W

IT
H

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

A
U

D
IT

IN
G

S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

D
ec

em
be

r
17

.2
02

4

M
em

be
rs

of
th

e
B

oa
rd

C
it

y
of

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y

D
ow

nt
ow

n
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y,
M

ic
hi

ga
n

W
e

ha
ve

au
di

te
d.

in
ac

co
rd

an
ce

w
it

h
th

e
au

di
ti

ng
st

an
da

rd
s

ge
ne

ra
ll

y
ac

ce
pt

ed
in

th
e

U
ni

te
d

S
ta

te
s

of
A

m
er

ic
a

an
d

th
e

st
an

da
rd

s
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

to
?n

an
ci

al
au

di
ts

co
nt

ai
ne

d
in

G
ov

er
nm

en
t

A
ud

it
in

g
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

is
su

ed
by

th
e

C
om

pt
ro

ll
er

G
en

er
al

of
th

e
U

ni
te

d
S

ta
te

s,
th

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

of
th

e
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l

ac
tiv

it
ie

s
an

d
ea

ch
m

aj
or

fu
nd

of
th

e
C

it
y

of
T

ra
ve

rs
e

C
it

y
D

ow
nt

ow
n

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

(t
he

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
).

a
C

om
po

ne
nt

U
ni

to
f

th
e

C
it

y
of

T
ra

ve
rs

e
C

it
y,

M
ic

hi
ga

n,
as

of
an

d
fo

r
th

e
ye

ar
en

de
d

Ju
ne

30
.

20
24

,
an

d
th

e
re

la
te

d
no

te
s

to
th

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

.w
hi

ch
co

ll
ec

tiv
el

y
co

m
pr

is
e

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
's

ba
si

c
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

.a
nd

ha
ve

is
su

ed
ou

r
re

po
rt

th
er

eo
n

da
te

d
D

ec
em

be
r

17
,

20
24

.

In
te

rn
al

C
on

tr
ol

O
ve

r
F

in
an

ci
al

R
ep

or
ti

ng

In
pl

an
ni

ng
an

d
pe

rf
or

m
in

g
ou

r
au

di
t

of
th

e
?n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

.w
e

co
ns

id
er

ed
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

's
in

te
rn

al
co

nt
ro

l
ov

er
?n

an
ci

al
re

po
rt

in
g

(i
nt

er
na

l
co

nt
ro

l)
to

de
te

rm
in

e
th

e
au

di
t

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
th

at
ar

e
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
in

th
e

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s
fo

r
th

e
pu

rp
os

e
of

ex
pr

es
si

ng
ou

r
op

in
io

ns
on

th
e

fi
na

nc
ia

l
st

at
em

en
ts

,
bu

t
no

t
fo

r
th

e
pu

rp
os

e
of

ex
pr

es
si

ng
an

op
in

io
n

on
th

e
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s

of
th

e
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

's
in

te
rn

al
co

nt
ro

l.
A

cc
or

di
ng

ly
. w

e
do

no
t

ex
pr

es
s

an
op

in
io

n
on

th
e

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s
of

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
’s

in
te

rn
al

co
nt

ro
l.

A
de

?c
ie

nc
y

in
in

te
rn

al
co

nt
ro

l
ex

is
ts

w
he

n
th

e
de

si
gn

or
op

er
at

io
n

of
a

co
nt

ro
l

do
es

no
t

al
lo

w
m

an
ag

em
en

t
or

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
in

th
e

no
rm

al
co

ur
se

of
pe

rf
or

m
in

g
th

ei
r

as
si

gn
ed

fu
nc

ti
on

s.
to

pr
ev

en
t.

or
de

te
ct

an
d

co
rr

ec
t.

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
on

a
ti

m
el

y
ba

si
s.

A
m

at
er

ia
l

w
ea

kn
es

s
is

a
de

?c
ie

nc
y,

or
a

co
m

bi
na

ti
on

of
de

?c
ie

nc
ie

s.i
n

in
te

rn
al

co
nt

ro
l,

su
ch

th
at

th
er

e
is

a
re

as
on

ab
le

po
ss

ib
il

it
y

th
at

a
m

at
er

ia
l

m
is

st
at

em
en

t
of

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
’s

?n
an

ci
al

st
at

em
en

ts
w

il
ln

ot
be

pr
ev

en
te

d.
or

de
te

ct
ed

an
d

co
rr

ec
te

d
on

a
ti

m
el

y
ba

si
s.

A
si

gn
i?

ca
nt

de
?c

ie
nc

y
is

a
de

?c
ie

nc
y.

or
a

co
m

bi
na

ti
on

of
de

?c
ie

nc
ie

s,
in

in
te

rn
al

co
nt

ro
l

th
at

is
le

ss
se

ve
re

th
an

a
m

at
er

ia
l

w
ea

kn
es

s.
ye

t
im

po
rt

an
t

en
ou

gh
to

m
er

it
at

te
nt

io
n

by
th

os
e

ch
ar

ge
d

w
it

h
go

ve
rn

an
ce

.

O
ur

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n
of

in
te

rn
al

co
nt

ro
l

w
as

fo
r

th
e

li
m

it
ed

pu
rp

os
e

de
sc

ri
be

d
in

th
e

?r
st

pa
ra

gr
ap

h
of

th
is

se
ct

io
n

an
d

w
as

no
t

de
si

gn
ed

to
id

en
ti

fy
al

l
de

?c
ie

nc
ie

s
in

in
te

rn
al

co
nt

ro
l

th
at

m
ig

ht
be

m
at

er
ia

l
w

ea
kn

es
se

s
or

si
gn

i?
ca

nt
de

?c
ie

nc
ie

s.
G

iv
en

th
es

e
li

m
it

at
io

ns
,

du
ri

ng
ou

r
au

di
t

w
e

di
d

no
t

id
en

ti
fy

an
y

de
?c

ie
nc

ie
s

in
in

te
rn

al
co

nt
ro

l
th

at
w

e
co

ns
id

er
to

be
m

at
er

ia
l

w
ea

kn
es

se
s.

H
ow

ev
er

,
m

at
er

ia
l

w
ea

kn
es

se
s

m
ay

ex
is

t
th

at
ha

ve
no

t
be

en
id

en
ti

?e
d.

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e

an
d

O
th

er
M

at
te

rs

re
gu

la
ti

on
s,

co
nt

ra
ct

s,
an

d
gr

an
t

ag
re

em
en

ts
.

no
nc

om
pl

ia
nc

e
w

it
h

w
hi

ch
co

ul
d

ha
ve

a
di

re
ct

an
d

m
at

er
ia

l
ef

fe
ct

on
th

e
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n

of
fi

na
nc

ia
l

st
at

em
en

t
am

ou
nt

s.
H

ow
ev

er
,

pr
ov

id
in

g
an

op
in

io
n

on
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e
w

it
h

th
os

e
pr

ov
is

io
ns

w
as

no
t

an
ob

je
ct

iv
e

of
ou

r
au

di
t,

an
d

ac
co

rd
in

gl
y,

w
e

do
no

t
ex

pr
es

s
su

ch
an

op
in

io
n.

T
he

re
su

lt
s

of
ou

r
te

st
s

di
sc

lo
se

d
no

in
st

an
ce

s
of

no
nc

om
pl

ia
nc

e
or

ot
he

r
m

at
te

rs
th

at
ar

e
re

qu
ir

ed
to

be
re

po
rt

ed
un

de
r

G
ov

er
nm

en
tA

ud
it

in
g

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
.

V
re

de
ve

l
d

L
L

C
C

PA
sa

n d
10

30
2

A
ve

nu
e

G
ra

nd
R ap id s,

M
I

49
53

4
Fa

x
( 61 6)

82 8- 03 07

D
ou

gl
as

J.
C

PA
44

6-
74

74
M

ic
ha

el
J.

C
PA

64
88

44
7

S
pe

ci
al

i
zi

ng
inse

rv
ic

e
stogo

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l

an
d

no
np

ro
fi

t
en

ti
ti

es

11
3]

]

Page 65 of 84



§§§

.3093
.650

E
u

.8
2985

8:
m

_ cozm
gcaeecoo

£5
565282

35388
van

.2280
.m

E
E

E
@

9853
9.:

9:36:00
5

m
E

m
nzm

?
9.533

E
w

E
E

m
S

G

53>
853.608

5
3.50th

:26
cm

uo tan
35.95

cu
m

_:82
m

2...
.m

o:m
__aE

8
co

.6
.928

3525
93:05.3

9:
3

m
m

w
co>

=
ootm 9.:

co
5an

cm
3395

2
«0:

new
.9..sz

«an.
8

£392
05

van
8:53:80

ucm65:8
.m

E
Q

E
ho 9.sz

S
o

he
88m

9:
828%

2
228

m
_:89

£5
8

8093
an...

«63¢
35

no 3095.“.

Page 66 of 84



33
]]

Page 67 of 84



Page 68 of 84



 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
303 E. State Street 

Traverse City, MI 49684 
harry@downtowntc.com 

      231-922-2050 

           Memorandum 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
To:    DDA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Harry Burkholder, DDA Executive Director  
   
Date:   January 13, 2025  
 
Subject:  Annual Treasury Report   
 
 
Under state statute, the DDA is required to fill out and submit an annual report on the  
status of the Tax Increment Financing Plans for the City of Traverse City DDA's TIF 97 
and Old Town TIF to Michigan Department of Treasury. With the help of the City’s 
Treasury Office, we submitted the report prior to the holiday break. A copy of each 
report is attached.  
  

Page 69 of 84



Send completed form to:
Treas-StateSharePropTaxes@michigan.gov TIF Plan Name

For Fiscal Years 
ending in

Issued pursuant to 2018 PA 57, MCL 125.4911
Filing is required within 180 days of end of 
authority's fiscal year ending in 2024. MCL 
125.4911(2)

Old Town TIF 2024
Year AUTHORITY (not TIF plan) was created: 1978

2017

Current TIF plan scheduled expiration date: Dec-41

Did TIF plan expire in FY24? No

Year of first tax increment revenue capture: 2018

No

If yes, authorization for capturing school tax:

Year school tax capture is scheduled to expire:

Revenue: Tax Increment Revenue 791,485$                  

Property taxes - from DDA millage only 21,919$                    

Interest 290$                         

State reimbursement for PPT loss (Forms 5176 and 4650) -$                              

Other income (grants, fees, donations, etc.)

Total 813,694$                  

Tax Increment Revenues Received Revenue Captured Millage Rate Captured

From counties 205,327$               6.5149

From cities 494,253$               15.6815

From townships -$                          
From villages -$                          
From libraries (if levied separately) -$                          
From community colleges 64,843$                 2.0574

From regional authorities (type name in next cell) BATA 15,089$                 0.4788

From regional authorities (type name in next cell) Recreation Authority 11,973$                 0.3800

From regional authorities (type name in next cell) -$                          
From local school districts-operating -$                          
From local school districts-debt -$                          
From intermediate school districts -$                          
From State Education Tax (SET) -$                          
From state share of IFT and other specific taxes (school taxes) -$                          

Total 791,485$               

Expenditures 268,933$                  

850,825$                  

-$                              
-$                              

-$                              

-$                              

-$                              

-$                              

-$                              

Transfers to other municipal fund (list fund name) -$                              

Transfers to other municipal fund (list fund name) -$                              

21,919$                    

Total 1,141,677$               

Total outstanding non-bonded Indebtedness Principal -$                              

Interest -$                              

Total outstanding bonded Indebtedness Principal -$                              

Interest -$                              

Total -$                              

Bond Reserve Fund Balance -$                              

Unencumbered Fund Balance -$                              

Encumbered Fund Balance -$                              

CAPTURED VALUES Overall Tax rates captured by TIF plan

PROPERTY CATEGORY TIF Revenue

Ad valorem PRE Real 25.1126000 $72,684.55 

Ad valorem non-PRE Real 25.1126000 $704,714.83 

Ad valorem industrial personal 0.0000000 $0.00 

Ad valorem commercial personal 25.1126000 $14,085.66 

Ad valorem utility personal 0.0000000 $0.00 

Ad valorem other personal 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility real property, 0% SET exemption 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility real property, 50% SET exemption 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility real property, 100% SET exemption 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility personal property on industrial class land 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility personal property on commercial class land 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility personal property, all other 0.0000000 $0.00 

Commercial Facility Tax New Facility 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT Replacement Facility (frozen values) 0.0000000 $0.00 

Commercial Facility Tax Restored Facility (frozen values) 0.0000000 $0.00 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 0.0000000 $0.00 

Neighborhood Enterprise Zone Act 0.0000000 $0.00 

Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act 0.0000000 $0.00 

Eligible Tax Reverted Property (Land Bank Sale) 0.0000000 $0.00 

Exempt (from all property tax) Real Property 0.0000000 $0.00 

Total Captured Value Total TIF Revenue $791,485.04 45,424,382$                                            

-$                                             -$                                                             

-$                                             

-$                                             

-$                                             

-$                                             -$                                                             

-$                                             

-$                                             -$                                                             

-$                                                             

-$                                                             

-$                                                             

Current Taxable Value

5,132,200$                              

-$                                             

Transfers to General Fund

-$                                             

-$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                               

Captured ValueInitial (base year) Assessed Value

-$                                               

-$                                               

2,894,346$                                

28,062,201$                              

-$                                                             -$                                               

-$                                               

560,900$                                   

-$                                                             

4,571,300$                                              

-$                                                             

-$                                             

-$                                             -$                                                             

-$                                             

-$                                                             

-$                                             

-$                                                             

-$                                                             

City of Traverse City DDA

Annual Report on Status of Tax Increment Financing Plan

20,432,081$                            

51,377,548$                            

Downtown Development Authority

17,537,735$                                            

23,315,347$                                            

Year TIF plan was created or last amended to 
extend its duration: 

Does the authority capture taxes from local or 
intermediate school districts, or capture the state 
education tax? Yes or no?

Professional Services 

Contributions to district construction projects 

31,517,447$                              

-$                                             -$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                             -$                                                             -$                                               

-$                                             -$                                                             

-$                                                             

-$                                             

-$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                                             

Page 70 of 84



Tax Increment Revenue
Specific Taxes Allowable for Capture by PA 57 Authorities
As of January 1, 2024 NOT PA 57

DDA TIFA LDFA NSRA CIA WRITIFA NIA BRFA
Former Public Act (now repealed) 197 450 281 35 280 94 61 381

Year 1975 1980 1986 1867 2005 2008 2007 1996
PA 57 PART 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

2018 PA 57 MCL Citation for "specific tax" definition 125.4201 (aa) 125.4301 (w) 125.4402 (hh) 125.4523 (9)(e) 125.4603 (e) 125.4703 (d)125.4803 (e) 125.2652
PA 189 of 1953 Lessees/Tax Exempt Property X X X X1 X X X X
PA 198 of 1974 IFT X X X X X X X X
PA 255 of 1978 CFT X X X X X X X X
PA 385 of 1984 Tech Park X X X X X X X X
PA 224 of 1985 Enterprise Zone X X
PA 147 of 1992 NEZ X X X
PA 146 of 2000 OPRA X X X

PA 260 of 2003
Eligible Tax Reverted Property (Land Bank 5/50) 
Tax X2

PA 210 of 2005 Commercial Rehabilitation X X X
PA 236 of 2022 Attainable Housing Facilities X
PA 237 of 2022 Residential Housing Facilities X

2  Limited to amount not reserved for Land 
Bank Fast Track Authority (PA 258 of 2003)

Blue highlighted cells--properties located in renaissance zones are 
exempt from these taxes to the degree listed in 1996 PA 376 at 
MCL 125.2689 (same extent as ad valorem taxes)
Yellow highlighted cells--properties located in renaissance zones 
are exempt from these taxes to the degree listed in the respective 
public acts (same as the others, just exempted in the individual acts 
instead of in the RenZone Act)

1  MCL 125.4523(9)(e) also lists 1976 PA 430, but that 
PA is merely an amendment to 1953 PA 189

Page 71 of 84

http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-4201
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-4301
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-4402
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-4523
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-4603
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-4703
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-4803
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-2652


Send completed form to:
Treas-StateSharePropTaxes@michigan.gov TIF Plan Name

For Fiscal Years 
ending in

Issued pursuant to 2018 PA 57, MCL 125.4911
Filing is required within 180 days of end of 
authority's fiscal year ending in 2024. MCL 
125.4911(2)

TIF-97 2024
Year AUTHORITY (not TIF plan) was created: 1978

1997

Current TIF plan scheduled expiration date: Dec-27

Did TIF plan expire in FY24? No

Year of first tax increment revenue capture: 1998

No

If yes, authorization for capturing school tax:

Year school tax capture is scheduled to expire:

Revenue: Tax Increment Revenue 3,954,161$               

Property taxes - from DDA millage only 109,504$                  

Interest 54,755$                    

State reimbursement for PPT loss (Forms 5176 and 4650) 28,471$                    

Other income (grants, fees, donations, etc.) 92,903$                    

Total 4,239,794$               

Tax Increment Revenues Received Revenue Captured Millage Rate Captured

From counties 989,631$               6.5149

From cities 2,385,038$            15.6815

From townships -$                          
From villages -$                          
From libraries (if levied separately) 136,933$               0.9044

From community colleges 312,209$               2.0574

From regional authorities (type name in next cell) BATA 72,819$                 0.4788

From regional authorities (type name in next cell) Joint Rec. Authority 57,531$                 0.3800

From regional authorities (type name in next cell) -$                          
From local school districts-operating -$                          
From local school districts-debt -$                          
From intermediate school districts -$                          
From State Education Tax (SET) -$                          
From state share of IFT and other specific taxes (school taxes) -$                          

Total 3,954,161$            

Expenditures 134,574$                  

1,469,281$               

830,746$                  

953,111$                  

-$                              
-$                              

-$                              

-$                              

-$                              

-$                              

-$                              

Transfers to other municipal fund (list fund name) -$                              

Transfers to other municipal fund (list fund name) -$                              

109,504$                  

Total 3,497,216$               

Total outstanding non-bonded Indebtedness Principal -$                              

Interest -$                              

Total outstanding bonded Indebtedness Principal -$                              

Interest -$                              

Total -$                              

Bond Reserve Fund Balance -$                              

Unencumbered Fund Balance -$                              

Encumbered Fund Balance -$                              

CAPTURED VALUES Overall Tax rates captured by TIF plan

PROPERTY CATEGORY TIF Revenue

Ad valorem PRE Real 26.0170000 $355,963.92 

Ad valorem non-PRE Real 26.0170000 $3,585,142.70 

Ad valorem industrial personal 26.0170000 $18.21 

Ad valorem commercial personal 26.0170000 $5,876.02 

Ad valorem utility personal 26.0170000 $7,159.88 

Ad valorem other personal 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility real property, 0% SET exemption 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility real property, 50% SET exemption 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility real property, 100% SET exemption 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility personal property on industrial class land 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility personal property on commercial class land 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT New Facility personal property, all other 0.0000000 $0.00 

Commercial Facility Tax New Facility 0.0000000 $0.00 

IFT Replacement Facility (frozen values) 0.0000000 $0.00 

Commercial Facility Tax Restored Facility (frozen values) 0.0000000 $0.00 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 0.0000000 $0.00 

Neighborhood Enterprise Zone Act 0.0000000 $0.00 

Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act 0.0000000 $0.00 

Eligible Tax Reverted Property (Land Bank Sale) 0.0000000 $0.00 

Exempt (from all property tax) Real Property 0.0000000 $0.00 

Total Captured Value Total TIF Revenue $3,954,160.73 151,983,731$                            

331,100$                                 275,200$                                   

-$                                               

-$                                             -$                                                             -$                                               

-$                                             -$                                                             

-$                                                             

-$                                             

-$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                                             

Cityof Traverse City DDA

Annual Report on Status of Tax Increment Financing Plan

13,681,974$                            

163,808,645$                          

Downtown Development Authority

-$                                                             

26,008,641$                                            

Year TIF plan was created or last amended to 
extend its duration: 

Does the authority capture taxes from local or 
intermediate school districts, or capture the state 
education tax? Yes or no?

Office Supplies and Utilities 

Professional Services 

Contributions to district construction projects 

Contributions to other governments - debt service

-$                                             

-$                                             -$                                                             

-$                                             

-$                                                             

-$                                             

-$                                                             

-$                                                             

Captured ValueInitial (base year) Assessed Value

-$                                               

-$                                               

13,681,974$                              

137,800,004$                            

-$                                                             -$                                               

700$                                          

225,853$                                   

55,900$                                                   

6,795,547$                                              

-$                                                             

-$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                               

-$                                               

Current Taxable Value

7,021,400$                              

-$                                             

Transfers to General Fund

700$                                        

32,860,088$                                            

-$                                             -$                                                             

-$                                             

-$                                             

-$                                             

-$                                             -$                                                             

-$                                             

-$                                             -$                                                             

-$                                                             

-$                                                             

-$                                                             

Page 72 of 84



Tax Increment Revenue
Specific Taxes Allowable for Capture by PA 57 Authorities
As of January 1, 2024 NOT PA 57

DDA TIFA LDFA NSRA CIA WRITIFA NIA BRFA
Former Public Act (now repealed) 197 450 281 35 280 94 61 381

Year 1975 1980 1986 1867 2005 2008 2007 1996
PA 57 PART 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

2018 PA 57 MCL Citation for "specific tax" definition 125.4201 (aa) 125.4301 (w) 125.4402 (hh) 125.4523 (9)(e) 125.4603 (e) 125.4703 (d)125.4803 (e) 125.2652
PA 189 of 1953 Lessees/Tax Exempt Property X X X X1 X X X X
PA 198 of 1974 IFT X X X X X X X X
PA 255 of 1978 CFT X X X X X X X X
PA 385 of 1984 Tech Park X X X X X X X X
PA 224 of 1985 Enterprise Zone X X
PA 147 of 1992 NEZ X X X
PA 146 of 2000 OPRA X X X

PA 260 of 2003
Eligible Tax Reverted Property (Land Bank 5/50) 
Tax X2

PA 210 of 2005 Commercial Rehabilitation X X X
PA 236 of 2022 Attainable Housing Facilities X
PA 237 of 2022 Residential Housing Facilities X

2  Limited to amount not reserved for Land 
Bank Fast Track Authority (PA 258 of 2003)

Blue highlighted cells--properties located in renaissance zones are 
exempt from these taxes to the degree listed in 1996 PA 376 at 
MCL 125.2689 (same extent as ad valorem taxes)
Yellow highlighted cells--properties located in renaissance zones 
are exempt from these taxes to the degree listed in the respective 
public acts (same as the others, just exempted in the individual acts 
instead of in the RenZone Act)

1  MCL 125.4523(9)(e) also lists 1976 PA 430, but that 
PA is merely an amendment to 1953 PA 189

Page 73 of 84

http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-4201
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-4301
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-4402
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-4523
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-4603
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-4703
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-4803
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-125-2652


 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
303 E. State Street 

Traverse City, MI 49684 
harry@downtowntc.com 

      231-922-2050 

           Memorandum 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
To:    DDA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Governance Committee  
   
Date:   January 13, 2025  
 
Subject:  DDA Board Roles and Responsibilities  
   Governance Committee Roles and Responsibilities   
 
 
The Governance Committee met on December 9, 2024 to discuss several documents 
related to the practices and policies of the DDA. Two specific documents, the 
Governance Committee Roles and Responsibilities and DDA Board Roles and 
Responsibilities were reviewed, discussed and revised  - and now attached here for 
review and discussion by the DDA Board.  
 
Recommended Motion  
That the DDA Board approve the Governance Committee Roles and Responsibilities 
Document and the DDA Board Roles and Responsibilities Document.  
 
 
  

Page 74 of 84



Page 1 of 2  

Traverse City Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 
Board of Directors 

Governance Committee – Roles & Responsibilities  
Draft Approved: December 9, 2024 by Governance Committee  

Final Document Approved: January 17, 2025 by DDA Board 
 

 
Pursuant to the DDA Board’s by-laws, the Governance Committee is a standing committee of 
the DDA Board of Directors. The Governance Committee is charged with oversight, review and 
recommendations regarding board operations to enhance the quality and future viability of the 
Board. The Governance Committee has the following roles and responsibilities: 

 
1. Meet at least quarterly and provide meeting minutes to the full Board of Directors. 

2. Lead the board in regularly reviewing and updating its understanding of its roles, 
responsibilities, and expectations of individual board members. 

 
3. Serve as the planning and review team for organizational strategic planning activities. 

4. Assess, on an on-going basis, the current and anticipated needs for board composition. 
 

5. Develop and recommend the following documents, practices, and policies; conduct 
annual review of all these items and make recommendations for any updates that may 
be needed: 

a. Board Committee job descriptions;  
b. DDA Board Roles and Responsibilities Statement  
c. Board Orientation and Operating Manual, including new member on-boarding 

process, protocols, content, and schedule; 
d. Board annual self-assessment protocol and tool, by January 31st of each year. 
e. Grievance Policy;  
f. Board process and format for conducting an annual performance and compensation 

review of the Executive Director; 
g. Any other board policies as needed. 

 
6. Establish and conduct reviews of the Downtown Development Authority Employment 

Handbook every other year and make recommendations to the Board for any 
adjustments. 

Page 75 of 84



Page 2 of 2  

7. Review the DDA Board’s by-laws annually and make recommendations for any changes 
if needed. 

8. Assist the Executive Director in planning and implementing board retreats, as desired. 
 

9. Regularly review the board’s practices and status regarding member participation, 
confidentiality, attendance and conduct, and provide any recommendations as needed 
to enhance board effectiveness. 

 
10. Any other periodic or regular Board Governance matters as desired by the Board of 

Directors. 

Page 76 of 84



                                                                                                                                                                    

                   Draft Approved: December 9, 2024 by Governance Committee  
Final Document Approved: January 17, 2025 by DDA Board 

DDA Board Roles & Responsibilities                   

Assure service to the designated constituents 

1. Create, regularly review/modify, and monitor progress on the organization’s 
Strategic Plan. 

2. Establish goals, strategies, and priorities based on the mission and community 
needs.  

3. Ensure adequate resources to accomplish the organization’s mission and goals.  
4. Periodically review and evaluate funding priorities and goals to ensure 

effectiveness and impact.  
5. Be guided by the organization’s guiding principles. 
6. Promote diversity and demonstrate equity and inclusion in all matters. 
7. Participate in a regular schedule of strategic planning to maintain excellence and 

refine the organization’s future direction.  
 

Serve as a continuous link between the organization and the community 

1. Act as the organization’s ambassador to the community consistent with the 
organization’s communications strategy and at the request of, or in coordination 
with, the Executive Director.  

2. Periodically review the organization’s communication plan and strategies. 
3. Be an advocate for the organization consistent with the organization’s 

advocacy/communications strategy, and at the request of, or in coordination, with 
the Executive Director. 

4. Do not respond to internal or external hearsay but report it to the Executive 
Director for discussion and clarification.  
 

Hire, support, and evaluate the Executive Director   

1. Clearly identify roles, responsibilities, and accountabilities of the Executive 
Director. 

2. Establish criteria to monitor and evaluate the performance of the Executive 
Director. 

3. Establish channels of communication with the Executive Director that will provide 
continuous input regarding responsibilities, expectations, and performance.  

4. Establish and maintain the highest possible levels of mutual trust and confidence 
with the Executive Director. 

5. Conduct an annual formal performance review with the Executive Director. 
6. Approve the Executive Director’s annual compensation package.  

 

 

 

Page 77 of 84



                                                                                                                                                                    

                   Draft Approved: December 9, 2024 by Governance Committee  
Final Document Approved: January 17, 2025 by DDA Board 

Ensure legal, ethical, and fiscal integrity 

1. Establish monitoring policies and procedures, relative to the Strategic Plan and 
the organization’s progress.  

2. Exercise fiduciary responsibility and oversight for all assets. 
3. Adopt an annual operating budget and regularly assess budget status. 
4. Oversee the provision of a regular financial audit by an independent auditor. 
5. Faithfully review and understand the financial statements.  
6. When representing the organization, act consistently in public with its overall 

strategy, values, and communication plans.  
7. Cause no hard to the organization; instead, pursue board member duties as an 

advocate for excellence.  
 

Ensure continuing effectiveness of the Board 

1. Establish criteria to monitor the Board’s performance.  
2. Conduct board self-evaluations every other year (at a minimum).  
3. Recruit and orient new board members.  
4. Develop and implement an on-going Board Learning and Development Plan. 
5. Develop and periodically assess/strengthen board policies.  

 
Learning and board participation expectations 

1. Steward the organization’s vision, mission, goals, and objectives. 
2. Embody the organization’s values and guiding principles.  
3. Focus on the overall strategy, policy, and integrity of the organization; respect the 

Executive Director’s role in administering and operating the organization. 
4. Adhere to all board policies and state and federal laws regarding avoidance of 

harassment and discrimination.  
5. Attend at least 75% of regular board meetings annually (9 meetings) 
6. Serve in leadership positions or undertake committee assignments or special 

assignments willingly when asked.  
7. Represent the organization at community events, as requested by the board 

Chair or Executive Director 
8. Keep abreast of trends in the field.  
9. Prepare for and actively participate in Board and committee meetings and other 

organizational activities.  
10. Ask timely, relevant, and substantive questions.  
11. Respect and maintain confidentiality of the Board discussions. 
12. Suggest agenda items periodically for Board and committee meetings, to endure 

that significant strategy. Policy, fiscal, and reputational matters are addressed in 
a timely fashion. 

13. Participate in fund development activities as specified for individual board 
members (if applicable). 

14. Adhere to federal and state laws regarding the Open Meetings Act and other 
public organizational legal requirements (when applicable). 

Page 78 of 84



                                                                                                                                                                    

                   Draft Approved: December 9, 2024 by Governance Committee  
Final Document Approved: January 17, 2025 by DDA Board 

Avoid Conflict 

1. Serve the mission and community as a whole, rather than special interest 
groups. 

2. Publicly and privately support the majority-voted decisions and positions of the 
board. 

3. Represent the entire constituency as opposed to one or more sub-sets. 
4. Avoid even the appearance of a conflict of interest and disclose any possible or 

potential conflicts in advance. 
5. Maintain independence and objectivity and do with a sense of fairness, ethics, 

and personal integrity dictate.  
6. Never accept or offer favors or gifts from or to, anyone who may be affiliated with 

the organization. 
 

Relationship with Staff 

1. Counsel the Executive Director as appropriate and offer support. 
2. Respect the distinction between your role and that of the Executive Director. Do 

not assign tasks, give directions, or provide performance feedback to the 
Executive Director’s staff. 

3. Avoid judgements on the basis of internal hearsay and urge those with concerns 
to work directly with the Executive Director. 

4. Understand that board members are largely selected on the basis of skills, 
background, and experience primarily for the purpose of policy, fiscal integrity, 
and strategy. 

5. Make a distinction between your roles as a board member vs. as a volunteer on 
a specific project of program.  
 

Relationships with other Board Members 

1. Bring a sense of openness, honesty, respect, patience, and good humor to the 
Board’s deliberations.  

2. Do not remain silent. Express your ideas, opinions, and questions. 
3. Promote candor among Board members to create trust in each other’s judgment 

and the acceptance of differing opinions.  
4. Deal openly and honestly with difference of opinion, without personal rancor or 

resentment.  
5. Following full consideration of issues, support the majority decision of the Board 

outside of the boardroom. 
6. Suggest potential nominees for the Board when needed.  

 

 

 

 

Page 79 of 84



                                                                                                                                                                    

                   Draft Approved: December 9, 2024 by Governance Committee  
Final Document Approved: January 17, 2025 by DDA Board 

Acknowledgment  
 
To be reviewed and signed by each board member annually, at the September Regular 
DDA Board meeting.  
 
I have read and reviewed the roles and responsibilities of the Board and its individual 
members. I understand and accept my role, and I agree to comply with the 
responsibilities of this office. 
 
 
Name: __________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Signature: __________________________________________ Date: ___________ 
 
 
 

Page 80 of 84



 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
303 E. State Street 

Traverse City, MI 49684 
harry@downtowntc.com 

      231-922-2050 

           Memorandum 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
To:    DDA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Harry Burkholder, DDA Executive Director  
   
Date:   January 13, 2025  
 
Subject:  Executive Director Report  
 
 
Below is an overview of projects and initiatives that the DDA is working on. 
 
Hannah Park Overlook  
This project began on January 13th and should last until the end of March. The sidewalk 
adjacent to the project will remain closed and traffic will be shifted throughout the 
duration of the project.  
 
Rotary Square  
Work continues with Progressive Companies on the conceptual design for Rotary 
Square. The first community survey was released on January 13th, and staff participated 
in several press events during the week.  
 
Two-Way Pilot Project 
DDA staff, in collaboration with City staff and representatives from Progressive 
Companies, provided an overview of the last two years of the two-way pilot project as 
well as plans for a possible two-year extension of the pilot to the City Commission at 
their Monday study session. Commissioners will consider formal action regarding the 
proposed two-way pilot extension at a future regular City Commission meeting (TBD). 
 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
DDA staff is working congruently with city staff to develop the 2025/2026 capital 
improvement plan. This process provides the DDA an opportunity to discover and 
potentially sync future DDA/City capital improvement projects. The formal approval 
process, including public hearings on the CIP, will begin in February.  

Page 81 of 84



  

 
 

 
 

 
303 E. State Street 

Traverse City, MI 49684 
 harry@downtowntc.com 

      231-922-2050 

           Memorandum 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
To:    Downtown Development Authority Board of Directors   
 
From:  Harry Burkholder, DDA Executive Director & Todd McMillen, DDA Board 

Member  
     
Memo Date:  January 13, 2025 
 
Subject: Arts Commission Update 
 
 
Inaugural Mural Festival  
The RFP for artists - for the Mural Festival – was released prior to the Holidays and we 
have already received a handful of submissions. Applications are due in February. We 
are currently meeting with representatives from NOBO to identify building owners 
interested in participating in the festival.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82 of 84



                                         Downtown Development Authority 
303 E. State Street 

Traverse City, MI 49684 
 sara@downtowntc.com 

      231-922-2050 
 

Memorandum 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
To:    Harry Burkholder, DDA Executive Director  

Downtown Development Authority Board of Directors   
    

From:    Sara Klebba, DDA Director of Events & Engagement  
 
Date:   January 13, 2024 
 
Subject:  DTCA Director of Events & Engagement Update 
 
Traverse City Restaurant Week (Feb 23-Mar 1) 
46 restaurants registered as of Jan 13 (deadline is Jan 20): 

• Aerie Restaurant & Lounge 
• amical 
• Apache Trout Grill 
• Artisan Traverse City 
• Barrio 
• Blue Tractor Barbeque 
• Brengman Family Wines 
• Boathouse Restaurant 
• Bubba's Burgers & Bar 
• Bushell's Kitchen + Cocktails 
• Crocodile Palace @ The Little Fleet 
• Farm Club 
• FireFly 
• Harrington's By The Bay 
• Hopscotch Brick Oven and Taproom 
• Jolly Pumpkin 
• Loco Boys Brewing Company 
• Mama Lu's 
• Mammoth Distilling 
• McGee's 72 
• MiddledCoast Brewing Company 
• Minerva's 
• Modern Bird 

• NIIJII Restaurant 
• NoBo Riverside 
• North Peak Brewing Co. 
• Oakwood Proper Burgers 
• Oaky’s Tavern 
• Parkshore Lounge 
• Peninsula Grill 
• Poppycocks 
• Rare Bird Brewpub 
• Red Ginger 
• Red Mesa Grill 
• Reflect Bistro, Inside Cambria Suites 
• SLATE 
• Smoke and Porter Public House 
• Sorellina 
• The Burrow TC 
• The Cooks House 
• The Flying Noodle 
• The Good Bowl  
• The Tasting Room 
• Trattoria Stella 
• Warehouse KiTChen and Cork 
• West End Tavern 

Page 83 of 84



 
Event Details: 

• Prix fixe menus will be offered at $25, $35, or $45 and posted on downtowntc.com and 
the digital passport. 

• Digital Passport by TC Tourism: We’ll promote TCRW/restaurants through the passport, 
which includes event details, menus, and locations. Participants will all have a chance to 
win prizes. 

• Restaurant must be in Grand Traverse County or have a Traverse City mailing address. 
• Application deadline is Jan 20, menus due Feb 1, and $50 gift cards (prize giveaways) 

due Feb 14. 
• Restaurants will be able to offer dine-out or take-out menus. 
• Marketing promotion through DDA/DTCA and TC Tourism channels, print, digital, 

outdoor, PR, signage, etc. 
• We are reaching out for sponsors and open to discussions for this weeklong event! 

 
2025 DTCA Event Calendar 
The DTCA Board reviewed recommendations from the Events Committee for 2025. While some 
events are still in planning/discussion, the 2025 event slate is set as follows (to be posted on 
downtowntc.com): 
 
Feb 23-Mar 1 (last weekend of Feb): TC Restaurant Week  
March TBD: Pre-Spring Break themed shopping promo/scavenger hunt  
April TBD: Shoulder season Saturday shopping event 
May 2 (first Fri): Art Walk (or move to FNL #2 – to confirm with arts network; to possibly 
replace with another art-focused event) 
May/June: Toast to Downtown Revisited  
Jun TBD: Old Town Arts & Crafts Fair  
Jun 29 (first Sun of NCF): NCF Arts & Crafts Fair  
Aug 1 (first Fri): Street Sale  
Aug 1 & 8 (first and second Fri): Friday Night Live (8/8: to combine with Art Walk) 
Aug 16 (third Sat): Downtown Art Fair  
Late Sept/early Oct: Fall-themed event 
Oct 17-31 (2 wks before Halloween, starting Fri): Haunts & Harvest Window Walk  
Oct 25 (last Sat): Halloween Walk  
Nov 8 (second Sat): Shop Your Community Day  
Nov 15-Dec 21 (pre-Light Parade, pre-Christmas): Jingle Bell Shop holiday window display 
competition 
Nov 22 (Sat before Thanksgiving): Tree Lighting & Light Parade 
Nov 28 & 29: Black Friday & Small Business Saturday 
Dec 4 (first Thur): Ladies’ Night 
Dec 11 (second Thur): Men’s Night 
Dec 18 (third Thur): Group Shopping Night/”Wrap It Up” working title 
 

Page 84 of 84


	Agenda
	5. A. December 20, 2024 DDA Board Meeting Minutes - PDF
	5. B. DDA General, Old Town TIF, TIF-97 Financial Report and Dashboard - PDF
	OT TIF Trial Balance - Dec 24 (1)
	TIF 97 Trial Balance - Dec 24
	DDA_Dashboard - Dec 24
	OT_TIF Dashboard - Dec 24
	TIF 97_Dashboard - Dec 24

	5. B. Arts Commission December 2024 Financial Report - PDF
	7. A. Capital Project Priorities Update Memo (Burkholder) - PDF
	8. A. DDA 2024 Audit Memo (Burkholder) - PDF
	8. A. DDA 2024 Audit Cover Letter - PDF
	8. A. DDA 2024 Annual Audit Report - PDF
	8. B. 2024 Treasury Report Memo (Burkholder) - PDF
	8. B. 2024 Old Town TIF Treasury Report - PDF
	Specific Taxes capture

	8. B. 2024 TIF-97 Treasury Report - PDF
	Specific Taxes capture

	8. C. Governance Committee Memo - PDF
	8. C. DDA Governance Committee Roles and Responsibilities - PDF
	8. C. DDA Board Roles Responsibilities - PDF
	9. A. Executive Director Report (Burkholder) - PDF
	10. A. Art Commission Report (McMillen) - PDF
	11. A. Director of Events and Engagement Report (Klebba) - PDF

